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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Notice is hereby given that the 67" Annual General Meeting of INDIAN POTASH LIMITED (“the Company”)
will be held on Monday, the 05" September 2022,at 12.30 PM through Video Conferencing / Other Audit
Visual Means (VC/OAVM) to transact the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:
Item No.1- Adoption of Financial Statements
To receive, consider and adopt:

a. the Audited Standalone Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended March 31,2022,
together with the Report of the Board of Directors and Auditors thereon.

“RESOLVED THAT the Audited Standalone Financial Statements of the Company for the Financial Year
ended March 31, 2022, the Report of the Board of Directors and Auditors’ thereon placed before the
67™ Annual General Meeting be and are hereby adopted”.

b. the Audited Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company for the Financial Year ended
March 31,2022, together with the Report of the Auditors thereon.

“RESOLVED THAT the Audited Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company for the Financial Year
ended March 31, 2022, the Report of the Board of Directors and Auditors’ thereon placed before the
67™ Annual General Meeting be and are hereby adopted”.

Item No.2- Declaration of Dividend

To consider and declare Final Dividend of Rs.6/- per fully paid-up Equity Share of face value of Rs.10/-
each for the Financial Year 2021-22 and the same be paid out of the profits of the Company to those
shareholders whose names appear in the Register of Members as on 19 August 2022.

“RESOLVED THAT a dividend of Rs.6/- per fully paid-up Equity Share of Rs.10/- each be declared for the
Financial Year ended March 31, 2022 and that the same be paid out of the profits of the Company to
those shareholders whose name appear in the Register of Members as on 19* August 2022.

Item No.3- Re-appointment of Dr. U.S. Awasthi (DIN: 00026019) who retires by rotation

To appoint a Director in place of Dr. U.S. Awasthi (DIN: 00026019) who retires by rotation and being
eligible, offers himself for re- appointment.

RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 152 and all other applicable provisions, if any, of
the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules made thereunder (including any statutory modification(s) or re-
enactment thereof for the time being in force), Dr. U.S. Awasthi (DIN: 00026019), who retires by rotation
and being eligible for re-appointment, be and is hereby re-appointed as a Director of the Company, liable
to retire by rotation”.

Item No.4 - Re-appointment of Shri Dileep Sanghani (DIN: 00639824) who retires by rotation

To appoint a Director in place of Shri Dileep Sanghani (DIN: 00639824) who retires by rotation and being
eligible, offers himself for re- appointment.

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 152 and all other applicable provisions, if any,
of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules made thereunder (including any statutory modification(s) or
re-enactment thereof for the time being in force), Shri Dileep Sanghani (DIN: 00639824), who retires
by rotation and being eligible for re-appointment, be and is hereby re-appointed as a Director of the
Company, liable to retire by rotation”,

(s5)
) g




(=

INDIAN POTASH LIMITED

]
.

Item No.5 - Re-appointment of Shri A Sreenivas (DIN: 06611894) who retires by rotation

To appoint a Director in place of Shri A Sreenivas (DIN: 06611894) who retires by rotation and being
eligible, offers himself for re- appointment.

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 152 and all other applicable provisions, if any, of
the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules made thereunder (including any statutory modification(s) or re-
enactment thereof for the time being in force), Shri A Sreenivas (DIN: 06611894) who retires by rotation
and being eligible for re-appointment, be and is hereby re-appointed as a Director of the Company, liable
to retire by rotation”.

Item No. 6 -To appoint M/s. MSKA & Associates holding ICAl Registration Number 105047W as Statutory
Auditors from the conclusion of 67 Annual General Meeting until the conclusion of 72" Annual General
Meeting of the Company subject to approval at the Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the Company and
to fix their remuneration

To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following resolution as an
Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 139, 142 and other applicable provisions, if
any, of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (including
any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof for the time being in force) and based on the
recommendation of the Audit Committee and the Board of Directors, M/s.MSKA & Associates holding ICAI
Registration Number 105047W be and are hereby appointed as Statutory Auditors from the conclusion
of 67th Annual General Meeting until the conclusion of 72" Annual General Meeting of the Company
at an annual remuneration of Rs. 36,00,000/- ( Rupees Thirty Six Lakhs Only) inclusive of Tax Audit and
exclusive of taxes and other services, travelling and out of pocket expenses incurred in connection with
audit for the Financial Year ended March 31, 2023.

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT that the Managing Director / Chief Financial Officer / Company Secretary of
the Company be and are hereby authorized severally to do acts, deeds and things and take all necessary
steps as may be necessary proper and expedient to give effect to this resolution”.

SPECIAL BUSINESS :
Item No 7 - To ratify / approve the remuneration of Independent Directors

As per Section 149, 197 and 198 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Article 93 of the Articles of
Association of the Company, the Board may remunerate to the Directors either by a fixed sum and /
or by a percentage of profits or otherwise and such remuneration may be either in addition to or in
substitution for any other remuneration to which he/she may be entitled. The said remuneration to the
Independent Directors would be paid subject to ratification / approval of the Shareholders.

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC) of the Board of Directors in its meeting held on
11* October, 2021 observed that the profit achieved in the year 2020-21 was the highest ever in the
history of the Company.

Accordingly, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC) had considered the proposal and
approved for the payment of Rs.4 Lakhs each as remuneration to the Independent Directors for
FY 2020 - 21 regardless of the period of Directorship on the Board of the Company subject to ratification
/ approval of Shareholders of the Company.

Further, the Board of Directors in their Meeting held on 25" November 2021 took note of the same.
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“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to provisions of Section 149,197 and 198 of the Companies Act, 2013 read
with Article 93 of the Articles of Association of the Company, ratification / approval is being accorded for
the payment of Rs.4 Lakhs to each Independent Director as remuneration for FY 2020 - 21 regardless of
the period of Directorship on the Board of the Company”.

Item No. 8 -To ratify the appointment of Cost Auditors for the Financial Year 2022- 23 and fix their
remuneration

To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following resolution as an
Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Audit and
Auditors) Rules, 2014 and subject to such guidelines and approval as may be required from the Central
Government, the appointment of M/s. R M Bansal & Co. Cost Accountants, Lakhanpur, Kanpur, Uttar
Pradesh (U.P) as Cost Auditor of the company to conduct audit of cost accounting records maintained by
the Company for Sugar and Sugar Products manufactured by the Company for the Financial Year ending
on 31t March 2023 at a remuneration of Rs.25,000/- (Rupees Twenty Five Thousand only) for each unit/
factory exclusive of taxes, traveling and out of pocket expenses incurred in connection with the audit be
and is hereby ratified;

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT that the Managing Director / Chief Financial Officer / Company Secretary of
the Company be and are hereby authorized severally to do acts, deeds and things and take all necessary
steps as may be necessary proper and expedient to give effect to this resolution”.

Registered Office By order of the Board
Seethakathi Business Centre For Indian Potash Limited
1t Floor, 684 -690, Anna Salai
Chennai - 600 006
CIN : U14219TN1955PLC0O00961
Dr. Girish Kumar
Company Secretary

Date : 12.08.2022
Place : Chennai
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NOTE

1. An explanatory statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 relating to the special

No

business to be transacted at the Annual General Meeting is annexed hereto.

As the AGM shall be conducted through VC/OAVM, the facility for appointment of proxy by the
members is not available for this AGM and hence the Proxy Form and Attendance slip including
Route Map are not annexure to this Notice.

Institutional / Corporate Members are requested to send to the registered office of the Company a
scanned copy of the Board Resolution authorizing its representative (s) to attend and vote at the
AGM pursuant to Section 113 of the Companies Act, 2013.

The Members are requested to notify any change in their E-mail address immediately to the Company.

5. All the documents referred to in the accompanying Notice and explanatory statements shall be

available for inspection at the Registered Office of the Company.

Register of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel and their shareholding maintained under Section
170 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Register of Contracts or arrangements maintained under section
189 of the Companies Act, 2013 shall be available for inspection at the Registered Office of the
Company.

In view of the continuing restrictions on the movement of people at several places in the country
due to outbreak of COVID-19, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) vide its General Circular No
20/2020 dated 5" May 2020, General Circular No.02/2021 dated 13™January 2021, General Circular
No. 19/2021 dated 08" December 2021 and 21/2021 dated 14" December 2021 read with File
No. Policy - 17/57/2021 -CL-MCA dated 05* May 2022 has decided to allow the Companies whose
AGM are due in the Year 2022 to conduct the AGM on or before 31 December 2022 subject to
approval of the Government, if required, in accordance with the requirements laid down in para 3
and para 4 of the General Circular No. 20/2020 dated 5™ May 2020 through Video Conferencing /
OAVM facility. The deemed venue for the 67™ AGM shall be the Registered Office of the Company.

The Shareholders and Directors who find it more convenient to attend the meeting through virtual
mode, the link for the zoom meeting is given herein:

https: //usO6web.zoom.us/j/87548564466?pwd=MHp4MGRDTjk3dFdLVOJPUONYbDEYQT09
Meeting ID : 875 4856 4466
Passcode :349570

The shareholders shall login on the meeting in the above mentioned ID by giving the above
mentioned meeting ID and Passcode. In case of any difficulty in login in to the meeting,the members
can write to girish.kumar@potindia.com and selvam@potindia.com or contact at the Office
No. 044-28297855.

Members are requested to login to the above link at least 30 minutes before the meeting time so
that last minute rush can be avoided. The meeting shall be conducted by the company in accordance
with MCA General Circulars issued from time to time.

10. Attendance of the members participating in the 67" AGM through VC/OAVM facility shall be counted

for the purpose of reckoning the quorum under section 103 of the Companies Act, 2013.
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EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

The following Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("ACT”) sets
out all material facts relating to the items mentioned in the SPECIAL BUSINESS are given below:

Relevant documents in respect of the said items are open for inspection by the members at the Registered
Office of the Company on all working days during 2.30 p.m.to 4.30 p.m. up to the date of the Meeting.

None of the other Directors, Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or their relatives are, in any way,
concerned or interested in the resolution set out at item Nos. 7 and 8 of the Notice.

Item No.7

As per Section 149, 197 and 198 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Article 93 of the Articles of
Association of the Company, the Board may remunerate to the Directors either by a fixed sum and /
or by a percentage of profits or otherwise and such remuneration may be either in addition to or in
substitution for any other remuneration to which he/she may be entitled. The said remuneration to the
Independent Directors would be paid subject to ratification / approval of the Shareholders.

Accordingly, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC) had considered the proposal
and approved for the payment of Rs. 4 Lakh each as remuneration to the Independent Directors for
FY 2020 - 21 regardless of the period of Directorship on the Board of the Company subject to ratification
/ approval of Shareholders of the Company. Further, the Board of Directors in their Meeting held on
25" November 2021 took note of the same.

The Directors recommend the Resolutions at Iltem No.7 of the accompanying Notice for the ratification
/ approval of the Members of the Company.

None of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel or their relatives are concerned or interested to the
extent stated above in the passing of the resolution at Iltem No. 7.

Item No.8

As per the provisions of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013, the company is required to appoint
a Cost Auditor with the prescribed qualifications. As per the proposal received from the Audit
Committee for appointment of Cost Auditor for the Financial Year 2022-23, the Board proposed to
appoint M/s.R. M. Bansal & Co. Cost Accountants, Lakhanpur, Kanpur, Uttar Pradesh as Cost Auditors of
the Company for the Financial Year 2022-23.

As per Rule 14 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules 2014, the appointment and remuneration
payable to the Cost Auditors is to be ratified by the shareholders of the Company. Hence this resolution
is put for the consideration of the shareholders.

The Directors recommend the Resolutions at Item No.8 of the accompanying Notice for the approval of
the Members of the Company.

None of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel or their relatives are concerned or interested in the
passing of the resolution at Item No. 8.

Registered Office By order of the Board
Seethakathi Business Centre For Indian Potash Limited
1%t Floor, 684 -690, Anna Salai
Chennai - 600 006
CIN : U14219TN1955PLC000961
Dr. Girish Kumar
Company Secretary
Date : 12.08.2022
Place: Chennai
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Dear Shareholders,
DIRECTORS’ REPORT

The Directors have pleasure in presenting their
67t Annual Report along with audited accounts
of the Company for the year ended 315t March,
2022.

GENERAL

Agriculture and the allied sector proved to be
the most resilient to the Covid-19 shock as it
registered a growth of 3.6 per cent in 2020-21
and improved to 3.9 per cent in 2021-22. This
was helped in no small way by good monsoon
behaviour both in pre-monsoon and during
actual monsoon period.

India received 155.2 mm rainfall during pre-
monsoon 2021 season,which was 18% above the
normal rainfall figure of 131.7 mm. 13 states got
Large Excess (over 60% above LPArains), 8 states
received Excess (20-59% above LPA), 7 states had
Normal (+/- 19% of LPA), 8 states got deficit rains
(20-59% below LPA), 1 state got Large Deficit
(over 60% below LPA).

During South-west monsoon, India received
874.6 mm rainfall which was 0.68% lower than
the normal rainfall of 880.6 mm. The southwest
monsoon seasonal (June to September) rainfall
over the four homogeneous regions is Normal
over Northwest India (96%) and central India
(104%). Seasonal rainfall is below normal over
East and Northeast India (88%) and above
normal over South Peninsula India (111%). Out
of the total 36 meteorological subdivisions, 20
subdivisions constituting 58% of the total area
of the country received normal seasonal rainfall,
10 subdivisions received excess rainfall (25% of
the total area) and 6 subdivisions (17% of the
total area) received deficient season rainfall.

The live storage in 140 major reservoirs as on
31t March 2022 was 79.396 Billion Cubic Meter
(BCM), which is 107% of total live storage of
corresponding period of last year of 74.183 BCM
and 128% of storage of average of last 10 years
of 62.054 BCM.

The demand outlook for the fertilizer sector
remained positive for the rabi season as the
volume for the current rabi season remained

healthy and the fertilizer offtake was well
supported by healthy growth in the rabi sowing.

SALES

In the initial period of current fiscal , the country
did have a good inventory build-up for P&K
fertilisers . This systemic inventory of phosphatic
fertilisers in Indian markets has dipped sharply
amid elevated international prices and limited
availability in the international markets and thus
leading to decline in imports by your company.
Major MOP suppliers are either stayed away from
India or were supplying only limited quantities
because of lower sales prices in India. Thus,
availability of phosphatic fertilisers, particularly
DAP and MOP, has dipped sharply owing to the
decline in imports.

Also, China being a dominant player in DAP
segment catering to almost close to 42% of
global DAP capacity has suspended export of
DAP and this has further limited supplies in the
global markets which was already grappling with
supply constraints.

Hence, all the factors enumerated above has led
to the prices of phosphatic and potassic fertilisers
to have increased by 200%-250% during the
year ended March 2022 and is showing signs of
further increase .

To tide over this price increase, the Government
of India has started off on a positive note with
timely clearance of majority of NBS subsidy
claims. Also the Government of India raised
subsidies twice during the year under review to
shield the industry and the farmers from impact
of elevated international prices but still the
industry felt the the increase is not adequate and
not commensurate with ever increasing import
prices.

This spurt increase in international prices of DAP
from mid of May 2021 has led your company to
lower the importation of DAP and for bridging
the gap of phosphatic fertilizer, imported higher
quantities of complex fertilisers. Hence, the
company is able to achieve an impressive sales
performance on complex front.

As regards sales performance of DAP and
MOP, both Company’s first point sales and
retailer sales has declined for the year ended
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March 2022 largely due to high base effect of
panic buying during corresponding period of
previous year Kharif season and also low imports
and low availability in global markets.

The sales through point of sales (POS) is now a
real indicator of actual fertilizer consumption.

The All India POS sales of DAP, MOP and
Complexes showed a de-growth of 22.1%,28.2%
and 2.8% as compared to the previous year
growth of 17.9% ,22.9% and 19.8% respectively.

While urea sales of your company is dependent
on total imports by Department of Fertilisers
(DOF), it is the sale of DAP and MOP which are de-
controlled fertilisers and are more relevant for
bench marking the performance of the Company.

The sales through point of sales (POS) for the
company during the year under review for Urea
is down by 6.1%, DAP is down by 12.2% ,for MOP
is down by 19.7% and for complexes it is growth
of 32% as compared to the previous year growth
figures for Urea of 51.1%, DAP of 45.5% , MOP of
28% and for complexes by 138%.

In the month of November 2021, the company
was designated as “State Trading Enterprise”
under foreign trade policy for import of Urea
on Government account upto 315t March, 2022.
The Company had since handled import of 29.01
Lakhs MT on Government of India account with
an absolute value of Rs. 18,147.94 crores.

On division wise performance, Sugar industry
witnessed almost a balanced demand-supply
position thereby resulting in uptrend in prices
from end August 2021 and this trend was
maintained for the remaining part of the
year under review as well, given the supply
constraints continuing from Brazil as well as
increased diversion towards ethanol in India.
Hence, this combination of factors including
selling prices stabilizing at higher levels, higher
sucrose diversion, limited sugar production
and encouraging export outlook has further
strengthened the profitability of sugar division
for the year under review.

On Dairy division performance, the demand for
liquid milk segment was relatively stable with
contraction happening in the consumption of

value-added dairy products during early part of
the fiscal year. The revival in this segment was
seeninboth milkand milk products with normalcy
restored lately with the opening of institutions
and hotel establishments, restaurants and other
catering segments. This increased consumption
has resulted in good performance towards the
year end of March 2022.

FINANCIAL RESULTS FOR THE YEAR 2021-22

Financial Summary

Amount in Amount in
Particulars (Rs.Lakhs) (Rs. Lakhs)
Mar -22 Mar- 21

Total Income 18,71,548.10 16,58,109.43
Total Expenses 17,89,362.78 15,82,114.87
Profit/(Loss) Before Tax 98,639.06 96,223.18
(PBT), Finance cost and
Depreciation
Less: Finance Costs 11,814.94 15,112.62
Less: Depreciation and 4,638.80 5,115.99
Amortization Expenses
Profit/(Loss) Before Tax 82,185.32 75,994.56
Current Tax 23,055.00 19,291.51
Deferred Tax (2,375.81) (304.16)
Net Profit/(Loss) (PAT) 61,506.13 57,007.21
Less: Proposed Dividend and 1,143.89 71493
Tax thereon
Balance carried to Balance 60,362.24 56,292.28
Sheet

Your Company’s total volume sales of all products
at 6.3 million tonnes (excluding Urea on DOF
account at 2.9 million tonnes ) is showing a de-
growth of 19% (approx..) over 7.8 million tonnes
clocked during the previous year.

The total income of the Company during FY
2021-22 at Rs. 18,715.48 crores shows a growth
of 13% (approx.) as compared to turnover of
Rs. 16,581.09 crores clocked in the same period
last year. Had the value of High sea sales made
towards Urea imported on DOF account for FY
2021-22 at Rs 18,147.94 crores were to be added,
the absolute value of the turnover at gross level
will stand at Rs 36,863.42 crores. However, for the
purpose of disclosure in the financial statements
in accordance with applicable standards, the
canalizing transactions of Urea imported on
DOF account is shown after reducing the cost

Gt
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of import of urea from the gross High sea sales
value leaving the margin reported at net level.

The growth in the total income is also due to
positive impact on account of upward revision
in subsidy price per tonne effected by the
Government once in May'21 and the other in
October’21.

The Profit Before Tax (PBT) stands at Rs.821.85
crores and thereby registering a growth of 8%
(approx..) over the previous year which stood at
Rs.759.95 crores . The Profit After Tax (PAT) at Rs.
615.06 crores registers a growth of 8% (approx..)
over last year profit after tax figures of Rs. 570.07
crores.

It is also pertinent to bring to the kind attention
of the Shareholders the following facts which
had a bearing on the profitability of the Company:

1. The growth in the competitive market of
DAP, MOP and Complex fertilisers has been
possible only because of our economical
sourcing, efficient logistics management
and smart marketing.

2. Relative stability in forex market despite
little volatility seen in some months and
company following a judicious forex
pricing decision by close monitoring of
forex movement has resulted in exchange
gain of Rs. 17.95 crores. The rupee which
had opened at USD 1 =Rs 73.11 on 1.4.21,
USD 1 = Rs 74.33 on 30/6/2021,USD 1 =
74.23 on 30/9/2021, USD 1 = Rs. 74.34 on
31/12/2021 and finally closed at USD 1 =
Rs.75.79 on 31/03/2022.

3. Finance costs has resulted in a reduction
of Rs. 32.97 crores during the year due to
judicious borrowing and optimal utilization
of surplus funds. We were also helped by
timely payment of subsidies though there
are still substantial amounts recoverable
towards freight and other miscellaneous
heads.

4. The Company always carefully monitors and
controls operational cost, selling expenses
and administrative expenses and aligns its
expenses to the sales volume.

5. The dividend income from our associate
company M/s. JPMC received for Rs. 23.89
crores as against Rs. 46.58 crores received
for previous year.

6. There has been an overall improvement in
the performance of sugar division under
several operations / financial metrics.

7.  The Compressed Bio-gas division supplied
11.91 Lakh KG to I0OCL service / filling
station for sale value of Rs.5.50 crores for
the year under review.

The Company’s internal control systems are
commensurate with the nature of its business,
the size and complexity of its operations and
such internal financial controls with reference to
the Financial Statements are adequate.

BIO-REFINERY PROJECT

Your Company has successfully passed the trial
operations of distillery and have since started
commercial operations post March 2022.

EXTENSION & PROMOTION  ACTIVITIES
CONDUCTED DURING 2021-22

We have always been making our strenuous
efforts for promoting balanced fertilization
to achieve the ideal NPK use ratio of 4:2:1. To
achieve that, we conduct a large number of field
oriented activities and intensive promotional
campaigns to educate the farmers on best
management practices to increase fertilizer use
efficiency and crop productivity under IPL and
collaborative projects.

Under IPLExtension & Promotion budget,we have
laid out 149 Crops Demonstrations, conducted
70 numbers of Field Days. We have organized 50
Sales Campaigns, 243 Farmer’s Meetings, 17 Crop
Seminars and 42 numbers of Dealer’s Training
Programs. We have also participated in 19 Agri
Fair/ Exhibitions. We have done 55000 sq. ft.
of Wall/Trolley paintings in rural areas. Apart
from this, we have also done 1189 Audio-Visual
Programs through which we have educated
farmers about balanced fertilization with special
reference to role of potash in crop production.

We have also distributed promotional literatures
like Potash Folder, Maize Folder, Cotton Folder,
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Soybean Folder,Vegetable Folder,DAP Folder, City
Compost Leaflet,Banana Leaflet,Kisan Mitra Gold
Leaflet, 20-20-0-13 Folder in Marathi, Cotton
Leaflet in Gujarati, Groundnut Leaflet in Gujarati,
NPK 16 16 16 Folders in regional languages,
Nano Urea Folders in regional languages, Cattle
Feed Folder in Hindi and Punjabi, Polyhalite
Leaflet in regional languages. These promotional
measures are an integral part of the company’s
initiative to reach out to farmer community at
large.

PFL: (POTASH FOR LIFE)

This project has been continuing since October
2013 and has been phased over 8 years and being
implemented in 12 states: West Bengal, Bihar,
Uttar Pradesh,Jammu & Kashmir,Madhya Pradesh,
Maharashtra, Chhattisgarh, Andhra Pradesh,
Punjab, Haryana, Telangana and Karnataka to
educate the farmers to correct the imbalanced
use of fertilizers.During the year 2021-22,we had
laid out 827 Field Demonstrations, conducted
88 Field Days, 167 Farmer’s Meetings, organized
76 Potash Campaigns, 34 Crop Seminars, 38718
sg. ft. of Wall Painting and 15 Dealers Training
Programs and participated in 9 Agriculture Fairs
and Exhibitions.

IPPP: (IPL POTASH PROMOTION PROJECT)

This IPPP project has started in year 2021-22
and is being implemented in 5 states: Odisha,
Haryana, Rajasthan, Gujarat, and Tamil Nadu.
During the year 2021-22, we had laid out 383
Crop Demonstrations. conducted 51 Field days,
organized 69 Farmer’s Meetings, 14 nos. of Sales
Campaigns,4 Crop Seminars, 8 Dealers / Retailers
Training Programmes and also done 36485 sq. ft.
of Wall Paintings.

BNPP: (BALANCE NUTRITION PROMOTION
PROJECT)

The BNPP project has started in year 2021-22
and is being implemented in 5 states: Telangana,
Karnataka, West Bengal, Maharashtra & Tamil
Nadu. During the year 2021-22, we had laid out
83 Crop Demonstrations, conducted 23 Field
Days, organized 53 Farmer’s Meetings, 4 nos. of
Sales Campaigns and participated in 2 nos. of
Farmer’s Fairs and Exhibitions.

PROSPECTS FOR 2022-23

With forecast of normal monsoons, it should
result in moisture levels being healthy and
rising water levels in reservoirs. This will lead to
increase in cropping area. From this standpoint,
we expect the consumption and growth in
demand to continue.

But fertiliser prices are expected to remain at
elevated levels due to high crop and energy prices
amid rising geopolitical tensions constraining
availability.

Despite steep rise in the subsidy rates under
the Nutrient Based Subsidy (NBS) scheme w.e.f.
01.04.2022,retail prices of P&K fertilisers do not
cover the landed cost of these fertilisers.

Timely payment of subsidy by Government is
expected to continue for credit profile to remain
healthy. Any delay will impact the liquidity
position of the company.

The company’s financial profile will despite
above situation and uncertainties will witness
improvement, aided by its leading market
position in Muriate of Potash (MOP) and Di-
ammonium phosphate (DAP) fertilizer segments
and healthy demand prospects for Potassic and
Phosphatic fertilizer (P&K) volumes in India
amidst tight competition. Also the outlook for
the year 2022-23 look stable on the expectation
of enhanced subsidy support from Government
of India.

The Company is expected to reap the benefits of
diversification benefits from investments done
in sugar division with addition of distillery and
Bio-CNG capacity.The Sugar division is expected
to perform well in 2022-23 . The combined Bio-
refinery project which had gone onstream live
is expected to add to both sales value and the
profits.

The Cattle Feed / Dairy Division has been
generating profits on steady basis for the
Company on every year and we hope to continue
the same in 2021/22 as well.

SHARE CAPITAL

The Authorised Share Capital of the Company
stands at Rs. 6,120 lakhs. The Issued, Subscribed

3
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and Paid-up Share Capital of the Company as on
March 31,2022 is Rs. 2,859.72 Lakhs comprising
of 2,85,97,200 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each. There
was no change in the issued, subscribed and fully
paid up share capital of the Company during the
year under review.

DIVIDEND

Considering the current performance of your
company during the year 2021 - 22 and
challenges ahead for 2022 - 23, the Directors
recommended a Dividend of Rs. 6/- per Equity
Share of Rs.10/- each, subject to the approval of
Shareholders.

DETAILS OF SUBSIDIARIES COMPANIES

Pursuant to provisions of Section 129(3) of
the Act together with Rule 8 of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014, a statement containing
salient features of the financial statements
of the Company’s subsidiary in Form AOC-1
is attached to the financial statements of the
Company. Pursuant to the provisions of section
136 of the Act, the financial statements of the
Company, consolidated financial statements
along with relevant documents and separate
audited accounts in respect of the subsidiary is
available for inspection at the registered office
of the Company.

DEPOSIT

The company did not invite or accept any deposit
from public during the period under report.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR
INVESTMENTS

Loans, guarantees and investments covered
under Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013
form part of the Notes to the financial statements
provided in this Annual Report.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Following were the changes in the position of
Directors of the Company during the financial
year 2021-22

. Shri. Sudhakar Bapurao Telang, IAS,
Managing Director, The Maharashtra State
Cooperative Marketing Federation Limited
has been appointed as a Nominee Director
in the place of Shri Shivakumar Gouda
Shiddanzgouda Patil.

. Shri. Pradyumna Poojari Srinivas, IAS,
Managing Director, The Andhra Pradesh
State Cooperative Marketing Federation
Limited has been appointed as a Nominee
Director in the place of Shri. M.Murugan.

. Dr. MV.Rao, IAS, Managing Director, The
West Bengal State Cooperative Marketing
Federation Limited (BENFED) has been
appointed as a Nominee Director in the
place of Shri. Santhosh Kumar Dash.

. Shri. A.Sreenivas, IAS, Managing Director,
The Haryana State Cooperative Supply and
Marketing Federation Limited has been
appointed as a Nominee Director in the
place of Shri.Vinay Singh.

e Shri. Rakesh Kapur, Joint Managing Director,
M/s. Indian Farmers Fertiliser Cooperative
Limited has been appointed as a Nominee
Director in the place of Shri. Balvinder Singh
Nakai.

The Board is pleased to place on record the
valuable services rendered by Shri. Shivakumar
Gouda Shiddanzgouda Patil, Shri. M. Murugan,
Shri Santhosh Kumar Dash,0AS(S),Shri Dusmanta
Kumar Behera, IAS, Shri. Vinay Singh IAS,
Shri. Balvinder Singh Nakai during their tenure
as Nominee Director of the Company. The Board
also extends a warm welcome to the Directors
who have nominated on the Board during the
current year under review.

Shri. Sudhir Bhargava, Shri. Arvind Kumar Kadyan
and Ms.Vandana Chanana, Independent Directors
has given their declarations that the meet the
criteria of Independence as laid down under
Section 149 (6) of the Companies Act, 2013.

The Company could not appoint Independent
Directors replacing the position held by previous
three independent Directors whose period of
office had ceased with effect from 31 August,
2020 in time and also our efforts to get the
extension of their term not fructified in time
because of COVID related restrictions and
lockdown etc. which disrupted normal and
regular working in offices. The composition of
the Board of Directors for the period from It April
2021 to 9™ August, 2021 was not in compliance
with the provisions of the Act and rules made
thereunder.
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The Company has since complied with the
Board composition by appointment of three
independent Directors on 10™ August, 2021 and
to hold office for a period of 5 years effective
from that date.

Directors liable to retire by rotation

In accordance with Section 152 of the Companies
Act, 2013 read with Articles of Association of
the Company, the following Directors will retire
by rotation at the forthcoming Annual General
Meeting of the Company:

1. Dr. U.S. Awasthi
2. Shri. Dileep Sanghani
3. Shri.A. Sreenivas

All of them are eligible for re-appointment and
have offered themselves for re-appointment.

Key Managerial Personnel

The following are the Key Managerial Personnel
of the Company:

Dr. P.S. Gahlaut, Managing Director
Shri. R. Srinivasan, Chief Financial Officer and

Dr. Girish Kumar, Company Secretary (w.e.f. 13%
September, 2021)

Shri. N. Ramanathan, Company Secretary (w.e.f
15% March, 2021 to 2" July, 2021)

During the year Dr. Girish Kumar has been
appointed as Company Secretary of the Company
with effect from 13" September 2021 subsequent
to resignation of Shri. N. Ramanathan from the
post of Company Secretary of the Company.

NUMBER OF MEETINGS OF THE BOARD OF
DIRECTORS

Regular meetings of the Board are held to
discuss and decide on various business policies,
strategies etc. The Board met Six (6) times
through Physical as well as Video Conference
held in accordance with the circulars issued by
the Ministry of Corporate affairs from time to
time. The Board Meetings held on 015t June 2021,
10*" August 2021, 08" September 2021, 30*
September 2021, 25" November 2021 and 18
February 2022 during the FY 2021-22.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Pursuant to the provisions under Section 177 of
the Companies Act, 2013, the Audit Committee
met on 6™ September 2021 and 17 February
2022, which were attended by all the members
of the Audit Committee.

The terms of reference of Audit Committee is as
per the provisions of the Companies Act 2013
and rules made thereunder.

The Company could not appoint Independent
Director replacing the position held by previous
one of the three independent Directors whose
period of office had ceased with effect from
31t August, 2020 in time and also our efforts
to get the extension of his term not fructified
in time because of COVID related restrictions
and lockdown etc. which disrupted normal
and regular working in offices. Accordingly, the
composition of the Audit Committee for the
period from I*t April 2021 to 9" August, 2021
was not in compliance with the provisions of the
Act and rules made thereunder.

The Company has since re-constituted the Audit
committee and has complied with the provisions
of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made
thereunder.

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 178 of
the Companies Act, 2013, the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee of the Board (NRC)
met on 11" October 2021, which was attended
by all the members of the Committee.

The terms of reference of NRC is as per the
provisions of the Companies Act 2013 and rules
made thereunder.

The Company could not appoint Independent
Director replacing the position held by previous
one of the three independent Directors whose
period of office had ceased with effect from
315t August, 2020 in time and also our efforts
to get the extension of his term not fructified in
time because of COVID related restrictions and
lockdown etc.which disrupted normal and regular
working in offices. Accordingly, the composition
of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee
for the period from I** April 2021 to 9 August,
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2021 was not in compliance with the provisions
of the Act and rules made thereunder.

The Company has since re-constituted the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee
and has complied with the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made
thereunder.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR)
COMMITTEE

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 135 of
the Companies Act, 2013, read with CSR Rules,
the CSR committee of the Board met on 24
September 2021 and 03 March 2022 which
were attended by all the members of the CSR
Committee.

The terms of reference of CSR is as per the
provisions of the Companies Act 2013 and rules
made thereunder. As a part of its initiative
under the “Corporate Social Responsibility”
(CSR) drive, the Company has emphasized on the
following Seven thrust areas for CSR activities in
accordance with Schedule VIl of the Act and the
Company’s CSR policy for the year 2021 - 22.

a) Promoting Preventive Health Care.
b) Promoting Swachh Bharat Mission.

¢) Promoting  Skill
Livelihoods.

Development and

d) Promoting Education including Special
Education to Differently Abled Persons.

e) Promoting conservation of natural resources
and climate action.

f)  Promoting Rural Development Activities.

g) Promoting new and appropriate
technologies including renewables such as
Solar.

During the year under review the Company has
undertaken various CSR Projects / Activities
and given highest priority to CSR spent to fight
COVIND -19 pandemic and Preventive Health
Care.

During the year the Company has contributed
the unspent amount Rs.7.98 Crores rounded of
Rs.8.00 Crores pertaining to Financial Year 2020
- 21,to the PM CARES FUND.

Details of CSR activities undertaken during the
year and CSR Policy are annexed to this Report
as Annexure 1.

The Company has constituted CSR committee
which is in compliance with the provisions of
the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made
thereunder as follows:

S. Name of the Details of | Designation /
No Director the Nature of
Director Directorship
(DIN)
1 | Shri. Sundeep 02140600 Chairman
Kumar Nayak, IAS
2 | Shri. Arvind Kumar | 09264784 Member
Kadyan
3 | Ms.Vandana 07238012 Member
Chanana

A detailed report regarding Corporate Social
Responsibility is annexed to and forms part of
this report.

The Company could not appoint Independent
Director replacing the position held by previous
one of the three independent Directors whose
period of office had ceased with effect from
315t August, 2020 in time and also our efforts
to get the extension of his term not fructified
in time because of COVID related restrictions
and lockdown etc. which disrupted normal
and regular working in offices. Accordingly, the
composition of the CSR Committee for the period
from It April 2021 to 9" August, 2021 was not
in compliance with the provisions of the Act and
rules made thereunder.

The Company has since re-constituted the CSR
Committee and has complied with the provisions
of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made
thereunder.

AUDITORS

Pursuant to Section 139 of the Companies
Act, 2013 and the Rules framed thereunder
M/s. Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants
LLP, Firm’s Registration No.012754N/N500016
were appointed as the Statutory Auditors of the
company for a period of 5 years to hold office
from the conclusion of the 62" Annual General
Meeting until the conclusion of the 67" Annual
General Meeting of the Company.

10y
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In response to the auditors qualifications /
observations on the first information report (FIR)
filed by Central Bureau of investigation (CBI)
against the Managing Director of the company,
the status is that matter was discussed in
the Board meeting held on 1% June, 2021. The
Board directed the management to provide all
the information relating to the case to all the
regulatory authorities as and when requested.

The Management has been responding to the
queries raised by the authorities both through
written form and also by way of personal
appearance on various dates. Since the matter
is at a preliminary stage, the Board of Directors
believe that no independent investigation is
necessary at this stage as the CBI being a premier
investigation agency is already investigating the
matter.

The Company would take necessary steps at it
deem fit and take action based on the progress
of the case.

The Company has a strong internal control
mechanism in place for various activities and it
would continue to evaluate and strengthen its
internal controls further wherever warranted.

In response to the Company’s composition of the
Board and various sub-committees which were
not in accordance with the relevant provisions
of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made
thereunder, the Company could not appoint
Independent Directors replacing the outgoing
Independent Directors and also efforts to get
the extension of their term did not fructify in
time because of COVID related restrictions
and lockdown etc. which disrupted normal
and regular working in offices. Subsequently,
the Board in its meeting held on 10" August,
2021 had re-constituted the Board and various
sub-committees of the Board in line with the
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

In response to seeking prior approval for related
party transactions,the Company has since ratified
the transactions entered into upto August'21 and
approved related party transactions for the year
2021-22.

Pursuant to Section 139 of the Companies
Act, 2013 and the Rules framed thereunder
M/s. MSKA & Associates, holding ICAI
Registration No. 105047W has been appointed
as the Statutory Auditors of the company for a
period of 5 years commencing from the Financial
Year It April 2022 to 315t March 2027 subject to
the approval of the Shareholders at the Annual
General Meeting of the company at an annual
remuneration of Rs.36,00,000/- (Rupees Thirty Six
Lakhs only) inclusive of Tax Audit and exclusive
of taxes and other services, travelling and out
of pocket expenses incurred in connection with
the audit. The Statutory Auditors to hold office
from the conclusion of the 67" Annual General
Meeting until the conclusion of the 72" Annual
General Meeting of the Company.

SECRETARIAL AUDITOR AND SECRETARIAL
AUDIT REPORT

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the
Act and rules made thereunder, the Company
has appointed M/s. Rengarajan & Associates,
(Formely M/s. Arub & Associates) Company
Secretaries to undertake the Secretarial Audit
of the Company. The Secretarial Audit Report is
annexed as Annexure 2.

COST AUDITORS

The Board of Directors of the company, on
the recommendation of the Audit Committee,
have re-appointed M/s. R. M. Bansal & Co, Cost
Accountants, Lakhanpur, Kanpur, U.P as a Cost
Auditor for auditing the cost accounts in respect
of sugar products of the Company for the
Financial Year 2022-23. Necessary approval in
respect of their remuneration will be obtained
at the ensuing Annual General Meeting of the
company.

EXTRACTS OF ANNUAL RETURN

Pursuant to sub-section 3(a) of Section 134 and
sub-section (3) of Section 92 of the Companies
Act 2013, read with Rule 12 of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014
a copy of the Annual Return of the Company
containing the particulars prescribed under
section 92 of the Act,in Form MGT - 7 as on March
31, 2022 is made available on the Company’s
website at: https://www.indianpotash.org.
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RISK MANAGEMENT

A standardized Risk Management Process and
System is in place across the Company to support
our business to manage and effectively mitigate
critical risks. The Board is responsible for the
overall process of risk management throughout
the organisation. Executive Management
ensures there is a common and efficient process
in place. Our business units and corporate
functions address risks by following the requisite
process and system aligned to our objectives.
The Business risk is managed through cross-
functional involvement and communication
across businesses.

BOARD EVALUATION

The annual evaluation process of the Board of
Directors, Individual Directors and committees
was conducted in accordance with the provisions
of the Companies Act,2013. The Board evaluated
its performance after seeking inputs from all
the Directors on the basis of criteria such as the
Board composition and structure, effectiveness
of Board processes, information and functioning,
etc. The performance of the Committees was
evaluated by the Board after seeking inputs
from the committee members on the basis of
criteria such as the composition of committees,
effectiveness of committee meetings, etc.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES

The particulars of employees as required Rule
5(2) of Chapter XllI, the Companies (Appointment
and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel)
Rules, 2014 as amended from time to time is
attached as Annexure-3 which forms part of this
report.

PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR
ARRANGEMENTS MADE WITH RELATED PARTIES

All contracts / arrangements / transactions
entered by the Company during the financial year
with related parties were in the ordinary course
of business and on an arms’s length basis. During
the year, the Company had not entered into any
contract /arrangement / transaction with related
parties which could be considered materially

significant which may have potential conflict
with interest of the Company at large.

Your Directors draw attention of the members
to Note 26 to the financial statement which sets
out related party disclosures.

The related party transactions are duly approved
by the Audit Committee and the Board.

VIGIL MECHANISM / WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY

The Company has a Whistle Blower Policy
to report genuine concerns or grievances
& to provide adequate safeguards against
victimization of persons who may use such
mechanism. The Whistle Blower Policy has been
posted on the website of the Company at http://
www.indianpotash.org.com

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND
ADEQUACY

The Company’s internal control systems are
commensurate with the nature of its business,
the size and complexity of its operations and
such internal financial controls with reference to
the Financial Statements are adequate. Also refer
to company’s response to auditors qualification /
observations as aforesaid.

DISCLOSURE UNDER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT
OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE (PREVENTION,
PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013

The Company has in place an Anti Sexual
Harassment Policy in line with the requirement of
the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace
(Prevention, Prohibition & Redressal) Act, 2013.
During the year under review,no complaints were
received pursuant to the Sexual Harassment of
Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition &
Redressal) Act, 2013.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY
ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE
EARNINGS AND OUTGO

The particulars relating to conservation of
energy, technology absorption, foreign exchange
earnings and outgo, as required to be disclosed
under the Act, are provided in Annexure - 4 to
this Report.
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SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED
BY THE REGULATORS

There are no significant material orders passed
by the regulators or courts or tribunals which
would impact the going concern status of the
company and its future operations.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

According to the information and explanations
obtained, pursuant to Section 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013, your Directors hereby
confirm that:

a) In the preparation of the Standalone and
Consolidated Annual Accounts for the
Financial Year ended 31t March, 2022,
the applicable accounting standards had
been followed except in so far as relating
to amalgamation of a subsidiary company
where standards were applied as approved
by regulatory authority.

b) The Directors have selected such accounting
policies and applied them consistently and
made judgments and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent, so as to give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the
company at the end of the financial year
and of the profit or loss of the company for
that period.

c¢) The Directors have taken proper and
sufficient care for the maintenance of
adequate accounting records in accordance
with the provisions of the Companies Act,
2013 for safeguarding the assets of the
company and for preventing and detecting
fraud and other irregularities.

d) The Directors have prepared the annual
accounts for the Financial Year ended 31st
March, 2022 on a going concern basis.

e) The Directors have laid down Internal
financial controls to be followed by the
Company have been laid down and such

internal financial controls are adequate and
were operating effectively. Also refer to
management response as referred above.

f)  The Directors have devised proper systems
to ensure compliance with the provisions of
all applicable laws and that such systems
were adequate and operating effectively
except relating to the Board and sub-
committee composition and relating to post-
facto approval of related party transactions
instead of prior-approval both of which was
since complied as referred above.

STATUTORY
DISCLOSURES

INFORMATION AND OTHER

The Disclosure required under Section 197(12)
of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the
Rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules,
2014, is annexed as Annexure ‘5’ and forms
an integral part of this Report. A statement
comprising the names of top 10 employees in
terms of remuneration drawn and every persons
employed throughout the year, who were in
receipt of remuneration in terms of Rule 5(2) of
the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration
of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 is annexed
as Annexure - 5 and forms an integral part of
this annual report. The above Annexure is not
being sent along with this annual report to
the members of the Company in line with the
provisions of Section 136 of the Companies Act,
2013. Members who are interested in obtaining
these particulars may write to the Chief Financial
officer at the Registered Office of the Company.
The aforesaid Annexure is also available for
inspection by Members at the Registered Office
of the Company, 21 days before and up to the
date of the ensuing Annual General Meeting
during the business hours on working days. None
of the employees listed in the said Annexure is a
relative of any Director of the Company. None of
the employees hold (by himself or along with his
spouse and dependent children) more than two
percent of the Equity Shares of the Company.
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DISCLOSURE UNDER IBC

The details of application made or any proceeding
pending under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy
code,2016 (31 of 2016) during the year along
with their status as at the end of the financial
year.

NIL
DETAILS OF CRYPTO CURRENCY OR VIRTUAL
CURRENCY

NIL

LOAN RESTRUCTURING UNDER ONE TIME
SETTLEMENT

The details of difference between amount of the
value done at the time of one time settlement
and the valuation done while taking loan from

Date: 13™ June, 2022

the banks or financial Institution along with the
reason thereof.

NIL
ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

The company is grateful to the Ministry of
Chemicals & Fertilizers, Ministry of Agriculture,
Ministry of Finance, Department of Revenue and
other Departments of the Central Government,
Department of Agriculture of various State
Governments and the consortium of Banks for
their guidance, co-operation and assistance.

The Directors acknowledge with gratitude
the support of the company’s distributors,
Institutional customers, Overseas and indigenous
suppliers. The Directors also wish to place on
record their appreciation of the dedicated and
sincere services of the employees of the Company
at all levels.

On behalf of the Board

Sundeep Kumar Nayak
Chairman
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ANNEXURE 4 - TO THE DIRECTORS
REPORT

Particulars of Conservation of energy Technology
Absorption and Foreign Exchange Earnings and
Outgo required under the Companies (Accounts)
Rules, 2014.

A) Conservation of Energy
. B)
1. We have enhanced the capacity of the
Membrane of our RO System in Dairy Plant,
which has resulted in more reuse of the
waste water discharged from the RO System.

2. The Rain Water Harvesting Pits have been
developed within the Plant Premises, which
has reduced the load on ETP. Q)

3. Adirect line to feed Skimmed Milk into the
Drier Section has been established, which
has reduced the processing cost.

4. By using most efficient refrigeration system
and Tono frost we are achieving better
temperature and improved keeping quality of
milk on reduced cost which is turn increased
the acceptance level of our product in market.

5. In both the Boilers of Dairy Plant & Cattle
Feed Plant situated at Sikandrabad, the
quality of feed water is maintained to
achieve maximum heat transfer. Moreover
to this steam condensate generated from
plant is taken back as feed water to Boiler
resulting in less fuel consumption. Air Pre
Heater of boilers are cleaned regularly &
other preventive maintenance of Boiler is
undertaken to attain maximum thermal 4.
efficiency.

6. Incorporation of latest Level switches in
water tanks resulted in saving of water and
electrical energy. We have installed pressure
transmitters in Plant equipment to load/
unload the electrical motors resulted in

saving of electrical energy. We have installed
variable frequency drives on all major
processing machines which ensures savingin
power consumption. The power factor is also
maintained at 0.9918 which results in saving
of active power consumption and hence
saving of electrical energy and protection of
the equipment ultimately helping in saving
over all power consumption.

Utilization of alternative source of Energy

In our Dairy Unit we have installed TWO ‘on
Grid’ Solar Power Plant with a cumulative
capacity of 120 KW to generate the
electricity and same is used in production.

Technology Absorption, Adaptation and
Innovation

In our Dairy unit at Sikandrabad we have
modified the design of the Steam Radiator
in the Powder Plant by maximizing the
use of hot water Condensate and changed
the Fins Pattern resulted in increasing
the Heat transfer Rate which eventually is
giving a considerable saving in the usage of
Electricity as well as Steam Consumption.

In Dairy Unit we have also installed most
energy efficient foil winding transformers in
which the transformation losses are minimal.

Processing plant in Dairy unit is having latest
SCADA based automation which results in
saving in energy and better process controls
ensuring consistency in final products.

In our Cattle Feed Plant Auto filling of
bags with PLC based system ensures better
process controls and saves energy. Modified
design of feeder conditioner of Cattle Feed
Plant for effective heat treatment of mesh for
palletization thereby enhancing palletizing
efficiency.

61D
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In our Dairy unit at Sikandrabad we have
replaced Plate Heat Exchangers of CIP circuit
with more efficient Tubular Heat Exchangers,
which has resulted in reduction of Steam
Consumption.

We have installed Three Vapor Absorption
Machines for refrigeration which are more
energy efficient than conventional Ammonia
based refrigeration system. We are using
Tono frost glycol instead of conventional
glycol which results in fast chilling and
saving of energy. Instead of electricity these

Date: 13™ June 2022

machines are running on steam which is
generated from agro waste. By using most
efficient refrigeration system and Tono frost
we are achieving better temperature and
improved keeping quality of milk on reduced
cost which is turn increase the acceptance
level of our product in market.

D. FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

Earnings

Outgo

Rs. 57456.66 Lakhs

Rs. 32,47179.52 Lakhs

On behalf of the Board

Sundeep Kumar Nayak
Chairman
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Annexure 1

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY POLICY

1. Preamble

The history of Indian Potash Limited (IPL) is
indeed history of potash acceptance. From 1947
to 1955 there were a number of importers of
MOP mainly for application on tea/ coffee garden
and other plantation crops. Potash was unknown
to Indian farmers during that time. It was the
dedicated works of few enlightened individuals
who shaped and nurtured it.

In 1955, Indian Potash Supply Agency (IPSA) was
formed as a consortium of the then fertilizer
interest at the instance of the Ministry of
Commerce and Industry, Government of India.
IPSA thus became the sole entrusted agency
for import handling, promotion and marketing
of potash in the entire country. IPSA took shape
of a vibrant and model corporate Indian Potash
Limited. (IPL) in 1971.

Indian Potash Limited (IPL) established with the
objective of balanced use of Potash has stood the
test of time in spite of decontrol of Phosphatic
and potassic fertilizers in 1992 and continues to
promote agrarian growth and farmer’s upliftment
for more than six decades in the past.

IPL is credited with the widespread acceptance
of potash across India, which the Indian farmers
were initially unaware of, and its achievement in
doing so, is considered as one of the remarkable
sagas in the domain of Indian Fertilizer Industry.
The organisation has further diversified into
Dairy, Cattle Feed, Sugars and Rural Warehousing
related activities with the focal point being
farmer’s well-being.

IPL during its successful run across the past
six decades has persevered to be able to bring
about the definitive positive and measurable
impact across the society. The organisation has
made the shift to “let’s do good” for the society by
being an exemplary corporate citizen.

We at IPL believe that in order to bring about
a positive change across the various sectors
of society, the organisation has to adhere to
the Sustainability Framework based on three
dimensions of Finitude, Fragility and Fairness
for the society to reap the long-term, continued
benefits.

This Corporate Social Responsibility policy
(hereafter referred to as ‘Policy’) of IPL has
been designed in consonance with Section 135
of The Companies Act, 2013 along with all the
amendments (hereafter referred to as ‘Act’) to lay
down the guidelines for undertaking Corporate
Social Responsibility (hereafter referred to as
‘CSR’) initiatives of IPLin accordance to CSR Rules,
(hereafter referred to as ‘Rules’) notified thereof
by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Government
of India in 2014 and Companies (CSR Policy)
Amendment Rules 2021. This Policy lays down
the guiding principles or rules that shall apply
to all CSR programs/projects as per Schedule VI
of the Act within the geographical limit of India
for the advantage of communities including
the marginalized, poor and deprived sections of
society, for contributing towards environmental
sustainability and promoting health, education,
livelihood and the art, culture and heritage of
India.

2. Objective of the CSR Policy

The CSR Policy is being conceptualized to achieve
the following objectives -

a) Todefine the perspective of IPL towards CSR
i.e. its meaning and its approach towards
CSR

b) To provide a standard framework and
guidelines for undertaking CSR activities
for contributing towards sustainable
development of the society empowering the
underprivileged and deprived communities.

¢) Tolaydownthe mechanism foridentification
of CSR programs without prejudice/bias/
favour and purely based on the needs, its
implementation and monitoring.

d) To provide a roadmap for compliance of CSR
as laid down under Section 135 read with
Chapter VII of the Companies Act, 2013.

e) To make CSR an integral part of the
organisation’s corporate philosophy towards
creating a greater social impact.
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3. Guiding Principles of IPLs approach to CSR

Indian Potash Limited is strongly connected
with the principles of sustainable development
that leads to a life of dignity for people in a
community. Sustainable development is linked
to the sustainability of social, economic and
environmental well-being for ensuring a holistic
development of the community.

IPL would undertake CSR Activities that are able
to create a desirable,sustainable and measurable
impact.

4, CSR Framework

The CSR Framework of IPL primarily strives
to be in consonance with the CSR activities as
per Section 135 read with Schedule VII of the

Companies Act. While choosing the project, IPL
will ensure that the following are adhered to -

a.  Compliance to the provisions of the Act

b.  Transparency,
Sustainability

Accountability  and

C. Replicability and scalability
d. Creating measurable impacts

4a. Core Pillars of CSR Activities - Thematic
Areas

N

Rural Development

Livelihood and
Skill Development

O MO

40 ©

Education

Environmental
Conservation

Renewable Energy

IPL shall engage with the community and
undertake the CSR activities in the following
thematic areas.

Rural Development

The IPLUs rural development programs will
support the small and marginal farmers and other
rural people by improvement of infrastructural
facilities in the community, accessible and
affordable education, healthcare facilities, rural
electrification, provision of safe drinking water
etc. The concentration would be to adopt villages
in order to develop them integrally.

Livelihood and Skill Development

IPL intends to support the small and marginal
farmers by providing them with modern
equipments, conduct farm-based skill
development programs to create sustainable
livelihoods and enhance the income generation
capability of Farmers.

Education

IPL will work upon various innovative initiatives
to provide quality education, training, skill
enhancement, infrastructure  development
of schools and universities etc. for overall
development of farmers and their families and
persons engaged in agricultural and allied
activities.

Healthcare

IPL will be undertaking healthcare projects
which would address the need of the community
in terms of accessibility and affordability to
the healthcare facilities. The same could be
achieved by conducting various health check-
up and awareness campaigns, improvement of
existing infrastructure facility, setting up of new
healthcare units, provision of mobile medical
vans, Ambulances etc.

Environmental Conservation

IPL will promote Environmental Conservation
and mitigate climate change effects by
undertaking activities such as creation of green
belt, restoration of water bodies, providing
sustainable irrigation facilities, restoration
of forests, promotion of Agroforestry, R & D
activities to improve the ecological balance etc.

D
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Renewable Energy

IPL would promote usage of Renewable energy.
IPL would undertake CSR activities to make
significant contributions in the community
for causing the shift from dependency on the
traditional fossil fuels to green, clean and
renewable energy sources.

Apart from the above-mentioned core thematic
areas, IPLwill also undertake any of the activities
that have been described under Schedule VI
(Annexure A) as per the approval of the Board
based on recommendation of the CSR Committee.

4b. Geographic Location and Target Communities

IPL will cover the geographic locations Pan-India
as it has presence all over India.

It intends to primarily focus on small and
marginal farmers, women and girl child, and
the members of the marginalised and deprived
communities.

4c. Project Identification, Planning and
Implementation

The Company shall give preference to well
defined operating principles during the planning
stage for the identification and implementation
of its CSR Project mode / Programmes to ensure
optimal utilization of the CSR budget.

4d. CSR Partnerships/Collaborations

Other than direct implementation of CSR
projects, IPL may undertake CSR activities in the
following partnerships modes:

e Any other company or its Corporate
foundation in the form of Society, Section 8
Company or a Trust having CSR1 registration
number;

e a company established under section 8 of
the Act or a registered trust or a registered
society, established by the Central
Government or State Government; or

e any entity established under an Act of
Parliament or a State legislature; or

e a company established under section 8 of
the Act, or a registered public trust or a
registered society, registered under section
12A and 80G of the Income Tax Act, 1961,
and having an established track record of
at least three years in undertaking similar
activities.

However, protdcols of the company for hiring /
awarding contract etc along with due diligence
of the implementing partner would be followed
as per the norms of the company. (Annexure B).

5. CSR Budget
5a. CSR Allocated Budget

e The Board of the Company will ensure that
in each Financial Year (FY), at least two per
cent of the average net profit (calculated as
per Section 198 of the Act) made during the
three immediately preceding FYs, is spent
on CSR projects / programmes.

e Projects/Programmes will be identified and
budgets allocated, identification of suitable
implementing agencies, if required.

5b. Surplus Amount

e If the Company makes any surplus or
profit from pursuing its CSR projects /
programmes, these will not form part of the
business profit but instead will be ploughed
back to its CSR activities.

5c¢. Unspent Amount

 Unspent Amount pertaining to ‘ongoing
projects’ — IPL will transfer any unspent
amount to a separate bank account of the
company called as “Unspent CSR account”.
This will be done within 30 days of from the
end of the financial year.

e Unspent Amount pertaining to other than
'ongoing projects’ - IPL, within 6 months
from the end of the financial year, will
transfer the unspent amount to any of the
funds included in Schedule VII of the Act or
as amended from time to time.

5d. Set off Fund

e In case IPL spends on CSR more than the
prescribed budget, then a board resolution
will be passed to earmark any amount spent
in excess of the allocated CSR Budget,
not including the surplus, as “set off Fund”
against the requirement to spend up to
immediate succeeding three financial years.

5e. Acquisition of Assets

CSR amount may be spent by IPL on creation of
capital assets, but the asset shall be held by -

22
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(@) a company established under section 8
of the Act, or a Registered Public Trust
or Registered Society, having charitable
objects and CSR Registration Number under
sub-rule (2) of rule 4; or

(b) beneficiaries of the said CSR project, in
the form of self-help groups, collectives,
entities; or

(c) a public authority

When undertaking a CSR project in
collaboration with other companies,
institutions, the company will report on its
share of CSR expenditure only.

6. Governance Mechanism

IPLwillconstitutearobust Governancemechanism
to oversee the smooth implementation of CSR
projects, in compliance with the requirements of
the Section 135 read with Schedule VIl of the
Companies Act, 2013 or as amended from time
to time.

6a. The CSR Committee

The governance of the CSR Initiatives will
be managed by the CSR Committee of
Directors constituted from time to time.

6b. CSR Team

The CSR team will be responsible for the
execution of the decisions taken by the
CSR Committee of Directors and Board will
ensure on ground implementation. CSR
function in IPL may be headed by a qualified
professional with relevant experience
and expertise. Each new member of the
CSR team will undergo an induction
process to apprise them of the CSR Policy
of IPL. Capacity building of the CSR Team
will be undertaken from time to time as
per evolving requirements. A monitoring
mechanism to mark all the milestones on
each activity would be in place.

6¢. Roles and Responsibilities
Roles and Responsibilities of the Board

The Board of IPL will be responsible for the
following

e Approve the CSR policy;

e Disclose contents of such policy in its report
and also place it on the company’s website,
if any;

e Ensure that the activities included in the
CSR policy are undertaken by the company;

e Ensure that the company spends, in every
financial year, at least two per cent of the
average net profits of the company made
during the three immediately preceding
financial years;

o  Satisfy itself regarding the utilization of the
disbursed CSR funds; and

e If the company fails to spend at least two
per cent of the average net profits of the
company, the Board shall, in its report made
under clause (0) of sub-section (3) of section
134, specify the reasons for not spending
the amount and transfer the unspent CSR
amount as per provisions of sections 135(5)
and 135(6) of the Act.

Roles and Responsibilities of the CSR Committee

The CSR Committee will be responsible for the
following -

e Formulate and recommend a CSR policy to
the Board;

e Recommend activities and the amount of
expenditure to be incurred on CSR activities;

e Monitor the CSR policy from time to time;

. Formulate and recommend an Annual
Action Plan to the Board.

Role and Responsibility of CFO

The CFO of the organization will be responsible
to verify and certify that the CSR funds being
disbursed have been utilized for the purpose and
manner as approved by the CSR Committee of
the Board.

Roles and Responsibilities of CSR Team
The CSR Team would be responsible for -

*  Being the Central point of coordination for
handling IPLs CSR Activities

e Beingthelnterface betweentheorganisation
and its various implementing agencies

e Reporting the progress being made in each

©
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of the CSR initiatives through the year at
periodic intervals as may be deemed fit by
the Company

Reporting any deviations and obtain
necessary approvals and resolutions as and
when required.

6d. Delegation of power to approve CSR Projects

The CFO of the organization will be responsible
to verify and certify that the CSR funds based on
approval of the CSR Committee/Board.

7.  Monitoring Mechanism

The CSR Committee of Directors would be
responsible for monitoring approved projects,
which may include site visits, meetings and
progress reports etc. This duty may be delegated
to the CSR team. This will be done based on the
milestones and success indicators, defined for the
project together with the Implementing Agency.
It will be the responsibility of the Implementing
Agencyto provide the project progress reportona
periodic basis (frequency to be decided based on
the nature of the project). All the documentation
for the same would be duly maintained.

A comprehensive and robust Monitoring
mechanism will be devised by IPL to ensure that:

e  the CSR process functions as mandated by
the Act and the Rules, and CSR Policy is
implemented - ensuring that all projects/
Programs as budgeted are duly carried out.

e the CSR spending must be closely monitored
& all CSR spends may be audited in an
accountable and transparent manner;

e the activities that may be undertaken as
part of monitoring may be regular field
visits to Project/Program sites, and activity-
wise comprehensive documentation of the
same in the form of Field Reports; Regular
interaction with beneficiary communities to
obtain feedback will be provided,;

e close monitoring of timely fund utilization
to ensure that Projects/Program as budgeted
are actually being carried out.

8. Impact Assessment

In compliance to the Act, IPL would endeavour
to conduct an impact assessment for the project
that it undertakes which has a budget outlay of
more than one crore.

1. Athird-party evaluation and verification for
CSR projects will be undertaken after the
completion of one year of the project

2. The head of the CSR team will be
responsible for overall impact assessment
of CSR initiatives.

3. An amount of upto 5% percent of the total
CSR expenditure for that financial year or
fifty lakh rupees, whichever is less may be
earmarked for conducting such assessments
which will be treated as a part of the CSR
expenditure.

9. Reporting

IPL will report on all the CSR activities
indicated in the Annexure C of this policy as
part of its Director’s Report. The reporting
format would be the same as prescribed
in the rules notified by the Ministry of
Corporate Affairs and as may be amended
from time to time.

10. Disclosure

The Company shall comply with Section 135
(2),135 (4) (1) and 134 (3)(o) of the Act thereby
ensuring that it makes a full disclosure of its CSR
Policy, Strategy, Projects / Program, Activities,
monitoring mechanism, Implementing Agencies,
Expenditure details as well as the composition
of the CSR Committee of Directors.

Copyright Notice

This is the policy of Indian Potash Limited only
for its internal use or for use only by the person/
persons they are specifically issued to. This
document is not for general distribution. Copying
or unauthorized distribution of this document,
in any form or means including electronic,
mechanical, photocopying or otherwise is illegal.
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Annexure A- CSR Activities under Schedule VII

CSR projects / Programmes can be undertaken in the following areas:

(xi)
(xii)

Eradicating hunger, poverty and malnutrition; promoting preventive health care and sanitation
and making available safe drinking water;
Promoting education, including special education and employment enhancing vocational skills

especially among children, women, elderly,and the differently abled and livelihood enhancement
projects;

Promoting gender equality and empowering women, setting up homes and hostels for women and
orphans; setting up old age homes, day care centers and such other facilities for senior citizens
and measures for reducing inequalities faced by socially and economically backward groups;

Ensuring environmental sustainability, ecological balance, protection of flora and fauna, animal
welfare, agroforestry, conservation of natural resources and maintaining quality of soil, air and
water;

Protection of national heritage, art and culture including restoration of building and sites of
historical importance and works of art; setting up public libraries; promotion and development of
traditional arts and handicrafts;

Measures for the benefit of armed forces veterans, war widows and their dependents;

Training to promote rural sports, nationally recognized sports, Paralympic sports and Olympic
sports;

Contribution to the Prime Minister’s National Relief Fund or any other fund set up by the Central
Government for socio-economic development and relief and welfare of the Scheduled Castes, the
Scheduled Tribes, other backward classes, minorities and women;

Contributions or funds provided to technology incubators located within academic institutions
which are approved by the Central Government;

Rural development projects.
Slum Development

Disaster Management, including relief, rehabilitation and reconstruction activities

©
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Annexure B - Aspects to be considered while engaging with other entities

While awarding contract of implementation, due diligence of the implementing agency would be
conducted to check the credentials of the organization. The following information from the interested
implementing agencies would be sought, as relevant:

a) CSR1 Registration Number issued by Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Government of India
b) Memorandum/Article of Association or Constitution

c) Registration Certificate

d) Registration Certificate under Section 12A

e) Audited Accounts of last three years

f)  IT Exemption Certificate under Section 80G (Lifetime validity)

g) Pan Card

h) IT Exemption Certificate under Section 35(i), if available

i)  Acknowledgement of Income Tax Return along with IT Return filed (last three years);
i) FCRA Certificate (if any) and latest copy of FCRA Return FC-3, if available;

k)  Description of the project.

Ensure that the project/ programme is consistent with list of activities in Schedule VII.

The team may visit and/or meet the representatives to assess the organization (as required).

©
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Annexure C - Format for the Annual Report on CSR Activities to be included
in the Board’s Reports [Annexure -Il]

Format for the Annual Report on CSR Activities to be Included in the
Board's Report For Financial Year Commencing on or After 1 Day of April, 2020

1. Brief outline on CSR Policy of the Company
2. Composition of CSR Committee:

SL. | Name of Director Designation / Number of meetings of | Number of meetings of CSR
No. Nature of CSR Committee held Committee
Directorship during the year attended during the year

3. Provide the web-link where Composition of CSR committee, CSR Policy and CSR projects approved
by the board are disclosed on the website of the company.

4. Provide the details of Impact assessment of CSR projects carried out in pursuance of sub-rule (3)
of rule 8 of the Companies (Corporate Social responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, if applicable (attach
the report).

5. Details of the amount available for set off in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 7 of the Companies
(Corporate Social responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and amount required for set off for the financial
year, if any

SL.No | Financial Year Amount available for set-off from | Amount required to be set-off for
preceding financial years (in Rs) the financial year, if any (in Rs)

Total

6. Average net profit of the company as per section 135(5).
7. (a) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 135(5)

(b) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous financial
years.

(c) Amount required to be set off for the financial year, if any (d) Total CSR obligation for the
financial year (7a+7b-7c).

8. (a) (CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year :

Total Amount Amount Unspent (in Rs.)
Spent for the
Financial Year. Total Amount transferred to Amount transferred to any fund specified under
(in Rs.) Unspent CSR Account as per Schedule VII as per second proviso to section
section 135(6). 135(5).
Amount. Date of Name of the Amount. Date of
transfer. Fund transfer.

3D
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(b) Details of CSR amount spent against ongoing projects for the financial year
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 1
SL | Name Item Local | Location of the [ Project | Amount | Amount | Amount | Mode of | Mode of Implemen-
No | ofthe | fromthe area project duration | allocated | spent trans- Imple- | tation - Through Im-
Project. | listof ac- | (Yes/No) forthe | inthe | ferredto | mentatio | plementing Agency
tivities in — project | current | Unspent | n-Direct
Schedule State ( District (inRs). | financial | CSR | (Yes/No).
Vil to the Year (in | Account
Act. Rs.) for the Name | CSR Reg-
project istration
as per number
Section
135(6)
(inRs.)
3
Total
(c) Details of CSR amount spent against other than ongoing projects for the financial year
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8
SL Name Item from | Local area Location of the project Amount | Amountal- | Mode of implementation
No of the the list of | (Yes/ No). spent for | located for Through implementing
Project activities in the project | the project agency.
schedule VII — (inRs.). (inRs.).
to the Act State District Name SR
Registration
number
1
2
3
Total

(d)  Amount spent in Administrative Overheads
(e)  Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable
(f)  Total amount spent for the Financial Year (8b+8c+8d+8e) (g) Excess amount for set off, if any

SL. No. Particular Amount (in Rs.)

() Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section
135(5)
(i) | Total amount spent for the Financial Year

(i) | Excess amount spent for the financial year [(ii)-(i)]

(iv) | Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activi-
ties of the previous financial years, if any

(v) [Amount available for set off in succeeding financial years [(iii)-

(iv)]

P
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9. (a) Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years:

SL. | Preceding | Amount Amount Amount transferred to any fund Amount

No. | Financial | transferred | spent in the specified under Schedule VII as per remaining
Year. to Unspent | reporting section 135(6), if any. to be spent
CSR Ac- Financial in succeed-
count under | Year (in Rs.). [ Name of the | Amount (in Date of ing financial

section 135 Fund Rs). transfer. years. (in

(6) (in Rs.) Rs.)
Total

(b)  Details of CSR amount spent in the financial year for ongoing projects of the preceding financial
year(s)

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9
SL. | Project | Name of | Financial | Project Total Amount Cumulati | Status of
No. ID. the Year in dura- | amount | spent on the | ve amount | the project

Project. | which the tion. | allocated | project in spent at | - Complete
for the the report- | theend of | d/Ongo-

project was
commenced. project |ing Financial | reporting Ing.
(inRs.). | Year (in Rs). | Financial
Year. (in
Rs.)

Total

10. In case of creation or acquisition of capital asset, furnish the details relating to the asset so created
or acquired through CSR spent in the financial year

(Asset-wise details).
(@) Date of creation or acquisition of the capital asset(s).
(b) Amount of CSR spent for creation or acquisition of capital asset.
(c) Details of the entity or public authority or beneficiary under whose name such capital asset
is registered, their address etc.
(d) Provide details of the capital asset(s) created or acquired (including complete address and
location of the capital asset).
11. Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two per cent of the average net profit as
per section 135(5).

Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-
(Chief Executive Officer (Chairman CSR [Person specified under clause (d) of
or Managing Director or Committee). sub-section (1) of section 380 of the Act]
Director) (Wherever applicable).
G:5)
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Annexure D - Form CSR 2

Report on Corporate Social
Responsibility (CSR)

CSR-2
[Pursuant to sub-rule (1B) of Rule 12 of
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014]

T 4

Form language [I English U Hindi
Refer the instruction kit for filling the form.

1  *(a) Corporate Identity Number (CIN) of the Company -

*(b) Name of the company

*(c) Address of the registered office of the company

*(d) email ID of the company |

2 (a) *Financial Year to which the Corporate Social Responsibility details pertain :
From | | (DD/MM/YYYY) | | (DD/MM/YYYY)

(b) * SRN of form AOC-4 / AOC-4 XBRL/AOC-4 NBFC filed by the company for its

standalone financial statements |

3. ()" *Net Worth | |
(ii) *Turnover | |
(ifi)" Net Profit | |

(iv) Criteria that triggered CSR applicability|

4.  (a)* Whether CSR Committee has been constituted [lYes [INo [INot Applicable

(i) Number of directors Comprising CSR Committee | |

(i) Number of meetings of CSR Committee held during the year | |

Sr. DIN Name of Director Category No. of meetings of CSR Committee
No. attended during the year

©
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IPL
(b) (i)* Whether the company has a website LlYes [INo.
(ii) If Yes Provide web-link
(iii) Whether following has been disclosed on the website of the company in pursuance of rule 9
of Companies (CSR Policy) Rules, 2014 :
° Composition of CSR committee OYes ONo ONA.
o CSR Policy OYes ONo
. CSR projects approved by the board OYes ONo

(©)  *(i) Whether Impact assessment of CSR Projects is carried OYes ONo ONot Applicable
out in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of Rule 8 of
Companies (CSR Policy) Rules 2014, if applicable

(i) * If Yes, whether the same has been disclosed in the Board Report OYes ONo

(iil) Provide web -link, if any

(d) (i)* Whether any amount is available for set off in pursuance of sub-rule (3) OYes ONo
of Rule 7 of Companies (CSR Policy) Rules , 2014
(ii) If yes, provide details :

S.No| Financial Year Amount available Amount set-off in the Balance Amount (in
for set off (in Rs.) | financial year, if any (in Rs.) Rs.)

1 | FY-1 Financial
Year End
Date
2 | FY-2 Financial
Year End
Date
3 | FY-3 Financial
Year End
Date
Total

5. (@)* Whether the company has completed the OYes ONo
period of three financial years since its incorporation

(b) If no, then provide the number of financial years
completed since incorporation

€)* Net Profit & other details for the preceding financial years.

'ED
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) Amount (in Rs.)
S. No. Particulars FY-1 FY-2 FY-3

Profit before tax
Net Profit computed u/s 198

Total amount adjusted as per rule 2 (1) (h) of
the CSR Policy rules 2014

4 Total Net Profit for section 135 (2-3)

(d)* Average net profit of the company as per section 135(5)

6. (@)* 2% of Average net profit of the company as per section 135(5)

(b)* Surplus arising out of the CSR projects / programs or activities of
the previous financial year, if any

(©)* Amount required to be set off for the financial year, if any

(d) * Total CSR obligation for the financial year (6a+6b-6c)

7 (a)* Whether CSR amount for the financial year has been spent OYes ONo
(b) If yes, CSR amount has been spent against :
0 Ongoing projects
O Other than ongoing projects

O Both (ongoing and other than ongoing projects)
(i) Details of CSR amount spent against ongoing projects for the financial year

Number of Ongoing Projects for the financial year

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10
S. | Proj- [ Item from [ Name | Local | Location of | Project | Amount | Mode of Mode of
No.| ect | thelistof [ ofthe | area | the project Dura- Spent Imple- Implementation
ID | activities | project | yas / no - tion(in | inthe | menta- | Through Imple-
in sched- R D!s- months) | financial | tion menting Agency
ule VI s year | Direct | CSR | Name
(inRs.) | Yes/no | Regis-
tration
No
1
2
3
4
5
Total XX
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(i)  Details of CSR amount spent against other than ongoing projects for the financial year

Number of other than Ongoing Projects for the financial year
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8
S. Item Name of | Local Location of the Amount | Mode of Mode of
No. from the area project Spent Imple- Implementation
he list of project | yes/ i in the men- Through Imple-

t ,e,ll_St 0_ No State District financial | tation menting Agency
activities in year Direct CSR Name
schedule VI (inRs.) | Yes/No | Regis-

tration
No
1
2
Total XX

(€)* Amount spent in Administrative Overheads | |

(d)* Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable | |

(e)* Total Amount Spent for the Financial Year | |

(f)* Amount unspent / (excess) spent for the Financial Year [6(d)-7(e)] | |

unspent for ongoging projects)

(9)* Amount eligible for transfer to Unspent CSR Account for the | |

Financial Year as per Section 135(6) (before adjustments)
(h)*  *Amount to be transferred to Fund specified in schedule VIl for the |
Financial Year (if total unspent for the Financial year is greater than
unspent for Ongoing projects
8. Details of transfer of unspent CSR amount for the financial year
(@) Transfer to unspent CSR account as per Section 135 (6)

Amount to be trans- Amount actually trans- Date of Transfer Deficiency, if any

ferred to Unspent CSR | ferred to Unspent CSR

account account

b) Transfer to fund specified in Schedule VII as per second proviso to Section 135(5) for the
Financial year :

Amount to be trans- Amount actually Date of Transfer Deficiency, if any
ferred to Fund speci- [ transferred to Fund
fied in Schedule VI specified in Schedule VII

(39
(39)
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9. *Specify the reason(s) if the company has failed to spend two per cent of the average net profit as
per section 135 (5)
10. *Whether any unspent amount of preceding three financial years (financial year ending after 22nd
January 2021) has been spent in the financial year.
O Yes O No
(@) Details of CSR amount spent in the financial year pertaining to three preceding fianacial year(s)
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8
S. | Preced- Amount Balance Amount | Amount transferred to Amount Deficiency
No.[ ing | transferredto [ Amountin spent a Fund as specified remaining to If any
Finan- | Unspent CSR [ Unspent inthe [ under Schedule VIl as per [ be spentin
cial |Accountunder | CSRAc- Financial | s€cond proviso to Section | succeeding
Year(s) | Section 135 | count under Vi 135(5), If any financial
(6)inRs. |section135 ear Amount | Date of years
(6)inRs. | (inRs) (inRs) Transfer | (inRs)
FY-1
FY-2
FY-3
b) Details of CSR amount spent in the financial year for ongoing projects of the preceding financial
year(s)
Number of Ongoing projects
S.No | Project ID | Name | Financial Year | Amount | Amount Cumulative Status of the
ofthe | inwhichthe | spentfor | spentin | Amount Spent at project--
Project project was | the proj- the the end of Completed /
commenced | ectatthe | Financial | Financial Year Ongoing
beginning Year -
(inRs.)
of the (inRs)
Financial
Year (in
Rs)
1
2
3
4

9
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9

(i)

O Yes

If yes, nature of the new CSR Project(s) is/ are

O Ongoing Project(s)

O Other than ongoing project(s)

O Both (Ongoing and other than ongoing projects)

O No

(iii) Details of Amount spent against new ongoing CSR project in the financial year

Number of Ongoging Projects

(i) Whether any new CSR project has been undertaken in the financial year from the unspent amount
pertaining to preceding three financial years :

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11
SNO | Proj- | Finan- Item Name | Local | Location | Project | Amount | Mode Mode of
ectID [ cial from | ofthe | Area ofthe | duration | spentin | of ||mplementation

Yearto the li:st project | yes/ | Project (in the F| Imple- Through Imple-
which o'f-act!v- No months) | nancial men- | o onti ng Agency
the new | ities in - year | tation
project | sched- sta | Dis- (inRs) | Direct | SR | Name
per- | uleVil te | trict (ves / Regis-
tains No) traI:Lon

1

2

3

4

5

Total XX

(iv) Details of amount spent against new other than ongoing projects in the financial year.

Number of other than ongoing Projects

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9
S. | Financial | Item from | Name | Local Location of the Amount | Mode of Mode of
No.| VYearto | thelistof | ofthe | Area project Spent Imple- Implementation
which | activities | project | yes/ —3 in the men- Through
the new | in sched- No State | District | gooncial | tation Implementing
project ule VII year Direct Agency
pertains Yes/no| CSR Name
Regis-
tration
No
Total XX

©
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11) Whether any unspent amount pertaining to FY 2014-15 to FY 2019-20 has been spent in the
financial year

O Yes

O No

Details of amount spent against CSR Projects in the financial year :
Number of CSR Projects

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9
SL. | Financial | Item from | Name | Local | Location of the Amount Mode of Mode of
No.| Yearto |thelistof | of | Area project spent in the Imple- Implementa-
which | activities | the | yeg/ Financial | mentation | tion - Through
the new | insched- | proj- [ No Year (in Rs). Direct Implementing
project | uleVIl ect (Yes / No) Agency
pertains State | District CSR | Name
Regis-
tration
No.
Total XX

12) *Whether any capital assets have been created or acquired through CSR spent in the financial year

O Yes

O No

If Yes, enter the number of Capital assets created / acquired

Furnish the details relating to such asset(s) so created or acquired through CSR spent in the financial

year

Sr.No.| Short particulars |Pin code of | Date of | Amount of | Details of entity / Authority / ben-

of the prf)perty.or the prop- | creation | CSR spent | eficiary of the registered owner

asset(s) (including erty or CSR Reg- Name Regis-

complete address | asset(s) istration tered
and location of Number, If Address

the property) applicable
Total XXX

( All the fields should be captured as appearing in the revenue record, flat No, house No. Municipal

Office / Municipal Corporation / Gram panchayat are to be specified and also the Area of the immovable
property as well as boundaries)

Attachments
Optional attachment (s) if any

List of Attachment

)
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Declaration

| am authorized by the Board of Directors of the Company vide resolution number * | |

* Date: to sign this form and declare that all the requirements of Companies Act, 2013 and the

rules made thereunder in respect of the subject matter of this form and matters incidental thereto

have been complied with. | further declare that :

13. Whatever is stated in this form and in the attachments thereto is true, correct and complete and no
information material to the subject matter of this form has been suppressed or concealed and is as
per the original records maintained by the company.

14. All the required attachments have been completely and legibly attached to this form.

To be digitally signed by one director

*To be digitally signed by _

*Designation

* DIN of the director,

Note : Attention is drawn to provisions of Section 448 and 449 which provide for punishment for false
statement / certification and punishment for false evidence respectively.

This eform has been taken on file maintained by the Registrar of Companies through electronic mode on
the basis of statement of corrections given by the authorized person.

[F.No. 1/19/2013-CL-V-Part Ill]

L ~
A, o
K. V. R MURTY, Jt. Secy.

Note : The principal rules were published in the Gazette of India vide number G.S.R. 239(E), dated the
315t March, 2014 and was subsequently amended vide notifications number G.S.R. 723(E), dated the 14"
October,2014,G.S.R. 37(E),dated the 16™ January,2015,G.S.R. 680(E), dated the 4" September, 2015 G.S.R
742(E),dated the 27™" July,2016 G.S.R.1371 (E),dated the 7*" November,2017,G.S.R. 191 (E) dated the 27"
February 2018,G.S.R. 725 (E), Dated the 31t July 2018, G.S.R.803(E) dated the 22" October, 2019, G.S.R.
60 (E) dated the 30* Janauary, 2020 and G.S.R. 205(E) dated 24* March 2021.

PR
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Annexure C - Format for the Annual Report on CSR Activities to be included
in the Board’s Reports [Annexure -Il]
Format for the Annual Report on CSR Activities to be Included in the
Board's Report For Financial Year Commencing on or After 1% Day of April, 2020
1. Brief Outline on CSR Policy of the Company..
CSR Activities will focus on the following activities that will positively impact the society at large.

a. Promoting preventive health care, sanitation, public toilets, education and measures for re-
ducing inequalities faced by socially and economically backward groups.

b.  Supporting proposal for conservation of natural resources and maintaining the quality of soil,
air and water.

c. Supporting to the proposals of Rural Development Projects such as setting up primary health
care centres, community toilets, drinking water supply, lighting, etc.

d. To generate,through this CSR initiatives, community goodwill for IPL and help reinforce a
positive and socially responsible image of IPL as a corporate entity.

2. Composition of CSR Committee:

SL. Name of the Designation | No. of meetings of | No. of meetings of CSR
No Director Nature of | CSR Committee held [ Committee attended
Directorship during the year during the year
Shri. Sundeep Kumar Nayak | Chairman 2 2
Shri. Arvind Kumar Kadyan Member 2 2
Ms.Vandana Chanana Member 2 2

3. Provide the web-link where Composition of CSR committee, CSR Policy and CSR projects approved
by the board is disclosed on the website of the company:

The Composition of CSR committee, CSR Policy and CSR projects details are available on the
Company’s website on: https://www.indiapotash.org

4. Provide the details of Impact assessment of CSR projects carried out in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of
rule 8 of the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, if applicable (attach
the report) : NA

5. Details of the amount available for set-off in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of Rule 7 of the Companies
(Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and amount required for set-off for the financial
year, if any: NA

SINo | Financial Year Amount available for set-off | Amount required to be set off for the
from preceding financial financial Year,
years(in Rs.) if any (inRs)

—

Fam Y
(+4)
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6. Average net profit of the company as per Section 135(5): Rs.58,984.48 Lakhs

7. Two percent of average net profit of the Company as per Section 135(5): Rs.1210.16 Lakhs

a. Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programs or activities of the previous financial years-

NA

b. Amount required to be set-off for the financial year, if any: NA

c. Total CSR obligation for the financial year (7a+7b-7c): Rs.1210.16 Lakhs
8 (a) CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year:

Total Amount Amount Unspent (in Rs)
Spent for Total Amount transferred to Amount transferred to any fund specified
the Financial | ynspent CSR Account as per | unders Schedule VI as per second proviso to
Year Section 135(6) section 135(5).
(Rs.in Lakhs)
Amount Date of Name of the Amount Date of
transfer Fund transfer
765.10 150.00 28.3.2022 NIL
512.58 22.4.2022
(b) Details of CSR amount spent against ongoing projects for the financial year:
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11
S.| Name [tem Lo- Location Project | Amount Amount Amount Mode of [ Mode of
No | ofthe from cal of the dura- allocated spent in transferred Imple- Imple-
Project | the list | Area Project tion for the the Cur- to unspent men- mentation
of (Yes/ project rent CSR Account | tation | Through Im-
activi- | No) (in Rs.) Financial for the Direct | plementing
ties Year project as (Yes/ Agency
In State | Dis- (inRs.) per Section No) CSR
sched- trict 135(6) Registration
ule (in RS.) Number
VI

1 | Set up of (ii) Yes New | Asper- | 4,05,30,000 18,89,250 3,86,40,750 No National
IPL Centre Delhi scribed Productivity
for Rural Council New
Outreach Delhi
(ICRO)

2 | Research (ii) Yes New | Asper- 48,44,056 27,50,000 20,94,056 No Indian
and De- Delhi scribed Agricultural
velopment Research
through Institute
Activities (IARI, Dethi)
to en-
hance the
efficiency
and crop
produc-
tivity

©
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Construction of
school in village
Jarwal Road,
District
Bahraich, U.P.

)

Yes

up

Bahraich

As per-
scribed

1,50,00,000

1,50,00,000

No

IPL Ed-
ucation
Society

Water conser-
vation project

- Development of
10 nos. of ponds
in District
Bulandshahr, U.P.

Yes

up

Muzaf-
farnagar

As per-
scribed

90,51,780

68,539,187

22,12,593

Yes

Providing Mobile
Dispensary Van
in Meerut and
Muzaffarnagar
Districts of U.P.

Yes

up

Muzaf-
farnagar

As per-
scribed

15,00,000

11,52,456

347,544

Yes

Construction of
Varandah for
Village Commu-
nity Hall, Village
Ghalauli,
Saharanpur

Yes

up

Saha-
ranpur

As per-
scribed

2,50,000

2,50,000

Yes

Promoting
Mensural
hygiene through
the Project
pankh -
Mensural
Hygiene
Management
Program”in
Haryana and UP.

Yes

Haryana
and UP

As per-
scribed

14,04,000

702,000

702,000

No

RANN
Founda-
tion/
CSR
0000
6234

Integrated Village
Development
Program U.P

Yes

up

As per-
scribed

10,49,470

88,820

9,60,650

Yes

Overhead and
Admin Cost @5%

60,50,800

60,50,800

Total

7,96,80,106

2,84,21,713

5,12,58,393

C
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(c) Details of CSR amount spent against other than ongoing projects for the financial Year :
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8
S. Name of the Item from the |Local | Location of the Project Amount Mode Mode of
NO Project list of activities | Area spent for of Implemen-
in schedule VII | (Yes/ the project Im-  |tation Through
to the Act No) (inRs.) pleme |Implementing
ntation Agency
State District Direct |Name | CSR
(Yes/ Reg-
No) istra-
tion
Num-
ber
Rural Developement

1 |Construction of X) Yes |Uttar Muzaffar- 3,49,700{ Yes - -
Cow Shed and Pradesh nagar
Straw Shed in
village Nevada
Charauli and
Pond deepening
in District,

Muzaffarnagar

2 |Supply and (X) Yes |Uttar Meerut 1,32,028| Yes - -
installation of Pradesh
public Gyms in
District Meerut,

U.P.

3 |lmproving (i) Yes [Gujarat Gandhi- 25,00,000] No [Coun- -
Livelihood nagar cil for
through Agri-

Farmer culture
Education, and
Farmer Fair and Rural
agri-expo Devel-
opment
(CARD),
Gand-
hinagar,
Gujarat

4 |Training (i) Yes Uttar Meerut 25,000] Yes - -
provided to Pradesh
sugarcane
farmers for
usage of
innovative
technology for
improving crop
productivity,

District Meerut,
Uttar Pradesh

©
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Promotion of (i) Yes Uttar Muzaffar- 8,00,000f Yes - -
livelihood Pradesh nagar
opportunities
through
representation
at District
Agriculture
and Industrial
Exhibition 2021,
Muzaffarnagar
6 [Promoting (i) Yes Pan India - 79,71,391| Yes - -
farmer educa-
tion through
Goverments’
“Azadi Ka Amrit
Mahotsav”
Education

7 |Construction of (i) Yes Uttar Meerut 8,21,197| Yes - -
school build- Pradesh
ing in village
Sakhoti Tanda,
District Meerut,
U.P.
8 [Rennovation (ii) Yes Uttar Basti 17,23,215( Yes - -
of Prathamic Pradesh
Vidyalaya (Pri-
mary School) at
Village Bhainsa
Chaubey near
Haraiya
District Basti,
uUp
9 |Provision of (i) Yes Madhya Morena 24,000] Yes - -
Bicycles to Pradesh
disabled
students to
facilitate
transportation.
10 |Financial sup- (i) Yes Uttar Amroha 2,00,000] No |Oulakh -
port to Oulakh Pradesh Shiksha
Shiksha Sewa Sewa
Samiti for pur- Samiti
chase of
computer &
accessories
11 [Financial sup- (ii) Yes Uttar Meerut 8,63,100] No |IPL -
port to Udbhav Pradesh Edu-
Shiksha Niketan, cation
Sakhoti Tanda Society
Meerut

©
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COVID Support

12

Supply and
installation

of 5 nos. of
oxygen gener-
ation plants in
Shravasti, Deo-
ria, Gorakhpur,
Basti and
Farukkhabad
Districts of
Uttar Pradesh.

(vi)

Yes

Uttar
Pradesh

Shravasti,
Deoria,
Gorakhpur,
Basti,
Faruk-
khabad

2,30,01,228

Yes

13

Support extend-
ed for fighting
COVID 19in
U.P.and Andhra
Pradesh.

(xii)

Yes

Andhra
Pradesh,
Uttar Pradesh

8,93,910

Yes

14

Support extended
for fighting COVID
19 - Distribution
of masks in
Rajasthan.

(xii)

Yes

Rajasthan

2,49,900

Yes

15

Support Extended
for fighting COVID
19 -Distribution
of masks in

Bihar and Madhya
Pradesh.

(xii)

Yes

Madhya
Pradesh,
Bihar

142,317

Yes

16

Contribution
towards COVID
Relief

(xii)

Yes

Uttar Pradesh

Buland-
shahr

2,00,000

Yes

Environmental Conservation

17

Water
conservation proj-
ect - Cleaning and
deepening of 7
ponds in District
Muzaffarnagar,
U.P.

(iv)

Yes

Uttar Pradesh

Muzaffar-
nagar

1,62,840

Yes

Othe

r Projects

18

Providing support
and facilities to
old Age home -
Shakuntalam
Mohanam Old
Age Service
Institute, village
Gawla, tehsil
Maheshwar,
district
Khargone, M.P.

(iii)

Yes

Madhya
Pradesh

Khargone

16,200

Yes

©
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Promotion of (i) Yes Maharasthra - 6,22,206] Yes
safety measures
to farmers by
providing Retro
reflective stickers
for tractor and
trolleys of farmers
in Maharashtra

Total Amount 4,80,88,532

(d) Amount spent in Administrative Overheads :NIL

(e) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if Applicable: NA

(f) Total Amount Spent for the Financial Year (8b+8c+8d+8e): 1277.68 Lakhs
(9) Excess amount for set off, if any

Sl No. | Particular Amount (in Rs)
(i) | Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 12,10,16,005
135 (5)
(i) | Total amount spent for the Financial Year 12,77,68,638
(iii) | Excess amount spent for the financial year ( (i) =(i)) 67,52,633

(iv) | Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or -
activities of the previous financial years. If any

(v) | Amount available for set off in succeeding financial years 67,52,633
(i) ~(iv))

9. (a) Details of unspent CSR amount for the preceding three Financial years:

SLNo Pre- Amount Amount Amount transferred to any fund speci- | Amount re-
ceding Transferred | spentin the | fied under schedule VIl as per section | maining to
Financial [ to Unspent |reporting Fi- 135 (6),if any be spent in
Year CSR Account | nancial Year succeeding
under sec- (in Rs) financial
tion 135(6) Name of Amount Date of years
(in Rs) the Fund (in Rs) Transfer (in Rs)
1 2020-21 - 2,41,56,604 | PM CARES [ 8 Crores | 23.09.2021 -
FUND

©



(=

INDIAN POTASH LIMITED

]
.

(b) Details of CSR amount spent in the financial year for ongoing projects of the preceding financial
years : NA

1) 2) ) (4) () (6) (/) @) ©)
SUNo | Project | Name | Financial | Project Total Amount | Cumulative Status of
Id of the Year in dura- amount spent on amount the project
Project | which the | tion allocated | the proj- spent at Completed /
project for the ectinthe | the end of on going
was Com- project reporting reporting
menced. (in Rs) Finan- Financial
cial Year Year
(in Rs) (in Rs)
——
Nl———_ |
1=
I E——

10. In case of creation or acquisition of asset, furnish the details relating to the asset so created or
acquired through CSR spent in the financial year: NA

(@) Date of creation/ acquisition of the asset(s)
(b) Amount of CSR spent for creation /acquisition of asset
(c) Details of the entity/ public authority under whose name such asset is registered, address

etc.
(d) Provide details of the property or asset(s) created/ acquired (including complete address

and location of the property)

11. Specify the reason(s) if the company has failed to spend two per cent of the average net profit as
per section 135(5): NA

Dr. P.S. Gahlaut Sundeep Kumar Nayak
Managing Director Chairman - CSR Committee

©
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Form No. MR-3 Annexure 2
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013

and Rule No.9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31.03.2022

To

The Members,

Indian Potash Limited

1st Floor, Seethakathi Business Centre
684-690, Anna Salai

Chennai - 600 006.

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the
adherence to good corporate practices by Indian Potash Limited (CIN: U14219TN1955PLC000961)
(hereinafter called the “Company”). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a
reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our
opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and
other records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers,
agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, we hereby report that
in our opinion, the Company has, during the financial year ended on March 31, 2022 (the audit period)
generally complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper
Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the
reporting made hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers,minute books,forms and returns filed and other records maintained
by the Company during the audit period according to the provisions of:

1.  The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder;

2. The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 ('SCRA) and the rules made thereunder;
3. The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;
4

Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to
the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial
Borrowings.

Other laws specifically applicable to the Company:

i. The Factories Act, 1948

ii. The Payment of Wages Act, 1936

iii. The Minimum Wages Act, 1948

iv. The Payment of Bonus Act, 1965

v.  Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972

vi. The Employees Provident Fund and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952;

vii. The Employees State Insurance Act, 1948

D)
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viii. The Maternity Benefit Act, 1961

iXx. The Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (PD & R) Act, 2013

X. Employees Compensation Act 1923 and rules make thereunder

xi.  Water (Prevention & Control of Pollution) Act 1974 and rules make there under

xii. Air (Prevention & Control of Pollution) Act 1981 and rules make there under

xiii. Environment Protection Act 1986 and rules made thereunder

xiv. Other Central and State Acts, rules, guidelines and regulations to the extent applicable to the

Company.

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following: -

1.

The Secretarial Standards with regard to Meeting of Board of Directors (S5-1) and General Meetings
(SS-2) issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India under the provisions of the Companies
Act, 2013.

During the period under review, the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules,
Regulations, Guidelines, Standards etc. mentioned above, except to the extent as mentioned below:

The composition of the Board of Directors was in compliance with the provisions of the Act and
rules made thereunder.

The Company had three Independent Directors (including one Independent and Woman Director)
appointed during August, 2021 onwards in terms of Section 149(11) of the Act.

The Company has appointed Woman Director during August, 2021 in compliance with the
requirements of the Act and rules made thereunder.

The composition of Audit Committee, Nomination and Remuneration Committee and Corporate
Social Responsibility Committee is reconstituted after induction of Independent Directors and
Women Director in compliance with the requirements of the Act and rules made thereunder.

Based on the information received and records maintained, we further report that: -

The composition of the Board of Directors was in compliance with the provisions of the Act and
rules. The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the period
under review were carried out in compliance with the provision of the Act.

We have not examined compliance by the Company with the applicable financial laws like direct
and indirect tax laws, since the same have been subject to review by statutory financial audit and
other designated professionals.

Adequate notice is given to all Directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed
notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance (and at a Shorter Notice for which
necessary approvals obtained), and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information
and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the
meeting.

As per the minutes of the Board Meetings and Committee Meetings, the decisions of the Board and
Committee as the case may be were carried out with requisite majority. We understand that there
were no dissenting views for being captured in the minutes.

“ 53 ,‘
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We further report that based on the compliance mechanism established by the Company, we are of
the opinion that there are systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the size and
operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations
and guidelines, however, there is scope for further improvement.

We further report that during the audit period no specific major events have happened which are
deemed to have major bearing on the Company’s affairs in pursuance of the above referred laws, rules,
regulations, guidelines, standards, etc.

For Rengarajan & Associates
(Formerly Arub & Associates)
Company Secretaries

Firm Registration No.S2015TN847100

A.Rengarajan

Proprietor

FCS:6725,CP: 13437

UDIN Number: FO06725D000489592

Date : 13-06-2022
Place : Chennai

®
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To

ANNEXURE TO SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

The Members
Indian Potash Limited
1st Floor, Seethakathi Business Centre

684-

690, Anna Salai

Chennai - 600 006.

Dear

Sub:
with

1.

Date

Members,

- Our Report of even No. dated 13.06.2022 for the Financial Year 2021-22 is to be read along
this letter.

Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the Company. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.

We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable
assurance about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was
done to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. We believe that the processes
and practices, we followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and books of accounts
of the Company.

Wherever required, we have obtained the management representation about the compliance with
relevant laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc.

The compliance with the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations,
standards is the responsibility of management. Our examination was limited to the verification of
procedures on test basis.

The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of
the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

For Rengarajan & Associates

( Formerly Arub & Associates)
Company Secretaries

Firm Registration No.S2015TN847100

A. Rengarajan
Partner
FCS:6725,CP: 13437
UDIN Number: FO06725D000489592
DATE: 13.06.2022
: 13-06-2022

Place : Chennai
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INDIAN POTASH LIMITED

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF INDIAN POTASH LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial
Statements

Qualified Opinion

1. We have audited the accompanying
standalone financial statements of Indian
Potash Limited (‘the Company”), which
comprise the standalone balance sheet
as at March 31, 2022, and the standalone
statement of profit and loss (including other
comprehensive income), the standalone
statement of changes in equity and the
standalone statement of cash flows for the
yearthen ended,and notes to the standalone
financial statements, including a summary
of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

2. In our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the
explanations given to us, the aforesaid
standalone financial statements give the
information required by the Companies Act,
2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required
and except for the indeterminate effect
of the matters referred to in the Basis for
Qualified Opinion paragraph below, give a
true and fair view in conformity with the
accounting principles generally accepted
in India, of the state of affairs of the
Company as at March 31, 2022, and total
comprehensive income (comprising of profit
and other comprehensive loss), changes in
equity and its cash flows for the year then
ended.

Basis for Qualified Opinion
3. We draw your attention to:

(@) Note 25(e) to the standalone financial
statements, regarding the ongoing

investigation conducted by the Central 4.

Bureau of Investigation (the “CBI”) against
the Managing Director and one of the
Directors of the Company and their relatives
mentioned in the CBI First Information

Report (the “FIR”) alleging that the Company
had imported fertilizers at inflated prices,
claimed higher subsidies from Government
of India and payment of commission
by overseas suppliers through complex
transactions to the persons mentioned
in the CBI FIR resulting in diversion and
siphoning of funds abroad during the period
2007-2014, which was audited by another
firm of Chartered Accountants. The matter
is pending investigation by the CBI,and the
High Court of Delhi,vide its order dated May
31, 2021 has directed, in this respect that
no coercive steps shall be taken against the
aforesaid. However, pending completion of
investigation by the CBI, the Board has not
carried out any independent investigation
and the adjustments, if any, and alleged
non-compliances with laws and regulations
including under the Indian Penal Code, 1860
and the Prevention of Corruption Act, 1988,
if any, that may arise on completion of such
investigation and the consequential impact
on the standalone financial statements, is
not ascertainable at this stage.

(b) Note 25(f) to the standalone financial

statements, regarding Company’s
composition of the Board of directors,various
committees of Board and consequential
matters thereof, and obtaining post-facto
approval instead of prior approval of the
related party transactions by the Audit
Committee, which were not in accordance
with Sections 177(2), 178(1) and 135(1),
177(4) respectively of the Act and Rules
made there under for the periods referred
to in the aforesaid note. The consequential
impact of this matter on the standalone
financial statements is currently not
ascertainable.

We conducted our audit in accordance with
the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified
under Section 143(10) of the Act. Our
responsibilities under those Standards
are further described in the ‘Auditors’
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INDIAN POTASH LIMITED

responsibilities for the Audit of the
standalone financial statements” section
of our report. We are independent of the
Company in accordance with the Code of
Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India together with the
ethical requirements that are relevant to our
audit of the standalone financial statements
under the provisions of the Act and the Rules
thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with
these requirements and the Code of Ethics.
We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our qualified opinion.

Other Information

5. The Company’s

Board of Directors is
responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises the Directors’
Report included in the Annual Report but
does not include the financial statements
and our auditors’ report thereon.

Our opinion on the standalone financial
statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form
of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the
standalone financial statements, our
responsibilityistoreadthe otherinformation
and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with
the financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears
to be materially misstated. If, based on the
work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report
that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of management and those
charged with governance for the standalone
financial statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is
responsible for the matters stated in

Section 134(5) of the Act with respect
to the preparation of these standalone
financial statements that give a true and
fair view of the financial position, financial
performance, changes in equity and cash
flows of the Company in accordance
with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, including the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of
the Act. This responsibility also includes
maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions
of the Act for safeguarding of the assets
of the Company and for preventing and
detecting frauds and other irregularities;
selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies; making judgments
and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent; and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls, that were operating effectively for
ensuring the accuracy and completeness
of the accounting records, relevant to
the preparation and presentation of the
standalone financial statements that give a
true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone financial
statements, management is responsible for
assessing the Company’s ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless
management either intends to liquidate
the Company or to cease operations, or has
no realistic alternative but to do so. Those
Board of Directors are also responsible
for overseeing the Company’s financial
reporting process.

Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the
standalone financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the standalone
financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’
report that includes our opinion.Reasonable

C
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assurance is a high level of assurance but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted
in accordance with SAs will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of
these standalone financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with
SAs, we exercise professional judgment
and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material
misstatement of the standalone financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control
relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances.Under Section 143(3)(i) of the
Act, we are also responsible for expressing
our opinion on whether the Company has
adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements in place
and the operating effectiveness of such
controls.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness
of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of
management’s use of the going concern
basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or

10.

11.

conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Company’s ability to continue as
a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditors’ report to
the related disclosures in the standalone
financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditors’
report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Company to cease to continue
as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure
and content of the standalone financial
statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with
governance regarding,among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with
governance with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and
to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be
thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

Reportonotherlegalandregulatoryrequirements

12. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s

13.

(@)

Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by
the Central Government of India in terms of
sub-section (11) of Section 143 of the Act,
we give in the Annexure B a statement on
the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4
of the Order, to the extent applicable.

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we
report that:

We have sought and except for the matters

(59
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referred to in the Basis for Qualified
Opinion paragraph above, obtained all the
information and explanations which to
the best of our knowledge and belief were
necessary for the purposes of our audit.

In our opinion, except for the matters
referred to in the Basis for Qualified
Opinion paragraph above, proper books of
account as required by law have been kept
by the Company so far as it appears from
our examination of those books.

The standalone balance sheet, the
standalone statement of profit and loss
(including other comprehensive income),
the standalone statement of changes in
equity and the standalone statement of
cash flows dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account.

In our opinion, except for the indeterminate
effect of the matters referred to in the Basis
for Qualified Opinion paragraph above, the
aforesaid standalone financial statements
comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act.

The matters described in the Basis for
Qualified Opinion paragraph above, in our
opinion, may have an adverse effect on the
functioning of the Company.

On the basis of the written representations
received from the directors as on March
31, 2022 taken on record by the Board of
Directors,none of the directors is disqualified
as on March 31,2022 from being appointed
as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of
the Act.

With respect to maintenance of accounts
and other matters connected therewith,
reference is made to our comments in
the Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph
above.

With respect to the adequacy of the
internal financial controls with reference
to financial statements of the Company and
the operating effectiveness of such controls,

refer to our separate Report in “Annexure
A” wherein we have expressed a qualified
opinion.

With respect to the other matters to be
includedintheAuditors’Reportinaccordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and
Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended), in our
opinion and to the best of our information
and according to the explanations given to
us:

i.  The Company has disclosed the impact
of pending litigations on its financial
position in its standalone financial
statements - Refer note 10 and note 25
to the standalone financial statements.

ii. The Company has long-term contracts
including derivative contracts as at
March 31, 2022 for which there were
no material foreseeable losses.

iii. There has been no delay in transferring
amounts, required to be transferred, to
the Investor Education and Protection
Fund by the Company during the year.

iv (@Q)The management has represented that,
to the best of its knowledge and belief,
as disclosed in the notes to standalone
financial statements, no funds have
been advanced or loaned or invested
(either from borrowed funds or share
premium or any other sources or kind
of funds) by the Company to or in any
other person(s) or entity(ies), including
foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with
the understanding, whether recorded
in writing or otherwise, that the
Intermediary shall, whether, directly
or indirectly, lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of
the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”)
or provide any guarantee, security
or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries (Refer Note 30(g) to the
standalone financial statements);

')
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—

b) The management has represented that,

to the best of its knowledge and belief,
as disclosed in the notes to standalone
financial statements, no funds have been
received by the Company from any person(s)
or entity(ies), including foreign entities
(‘Funding Parties”), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise,
that the Company shall, whether, directly or
indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or
entities identified in any manner whatsoever
by or on behalf of the Funding Party
(‘Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of
the Ultimate Beneficiaries (Refer Note 30(g)
to the standalone financial statements); and

Place : New Delhi
Date :June 13,2022

(c) Based on such audit procedures that we

considered reasonable and appropriate in
the circumstances, nothing has come to our
notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (a) and (b)
contain any material misstatement.

v. The dividend declared and paid during the

14.

year by the Company is in compliance with
Section 123 of the Act.

The Company has paid/ provided for
managerial remuneration in accordance
with the requisite approvals mandated by
the provisions of Section 197 read with
Schedule V to the Act.

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP

Firm Registration Number: 012754N/N500016

Chartered Accountants

Baskar Pannerselvam

Partner

Membership Number: 213126
UDIN: 22213126AKVTJB2099
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ANNEXURE ATO INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

Referred to in paragraph 13(h) of the Independent Auditors’ Report of even date to the members of

Indian Potash Limited on the standalone financial statements as of and for the year ended

March 31,2022

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with
reference to standalone financial statements
under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143
of the Act

1.

We have audited the internal financial
controls with reference to financial
statements of Indian Potash Limited
(“‘the Company”) as of March 31, 2022 in
conjunction with our audit of the standalone
financial statements of the Company for the
year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal
Financial Controls

2.

The Company’s management is responsible
for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the internal
control over financial reporting criteria
established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal
control stated in the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI").
These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls that
were operating effectively for ensuring
the orderly and efficient conduct of its
business, including adherence to company’s
policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the
prevention and detection of frauds and
errors, the accuracy and completeness of
the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information,
as required under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

3.

Our responsibility is to express an opinion
on the Company’s internal financial controls
with reference to financial statements
based on our audit. We conducted our audit

in accordance with the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”)
and the Standards on Auditing deemed to
be prescribed under section 143(10) of the
Act to the extent applicable to an audit of
internal financial controls, both applicable
to an audit of internal financial controls and
both issued by the ICAl. Those Standards
and the Guidance Note require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal
financial controls with reference to financial
statements was established and maintained
and if such controls operated effectively in
all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to
obtain audit evidence about the adequacy
of the internal financial controls system
with reference to financial statements and
their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls
with reference to financial statements,
assessing the risk that a material weakness
exists,and testing and evaluating the design
and operating effectiveness of internal
control based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our qualified audit
opinion on the Company’s internal financial
controls system with reference to financial
statements.

D)
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with
reference to financial statements

6.

Inherent Limitations of

A company's internal financial control
with reference to financial statements is
a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes
in accordance with generally accepted
accounting  principles. A company's
internal financial control with reference to
financial statements includes those policies
and procedures that (1) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable
detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets
of the company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as
necessary to permit preparation of financial
statements in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, and that
receipts and expenditures of the company
are being made only in accordance with
authorisations of management and directors
of the company; and (3) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely
detection of unauthorised acquisition, use,
or disposition of the company's assets that
could have a material effect on the financial
statements.

Internal Financial

Controls with reference to financial statements

7.

Because of the inherent Llimitations of
internal financial controls with reference
to financial statements, including the
possibility of collusion or improper
management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may
occur and not be detected. Also, projections
of any evaluation of the internal financial
controls with reference to financial
statements to future periods are subject to
the risk that the internal financial control
with reference to financial statements may
become inadequate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance
with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

8.

According to the information and
explanations given to us and based on our
audit, the following material weaknesses
have been identified in the operating
effectiveness of the Company’s internal
financial controls with reference to financial
statements as at March 31,2022:

a) The Company’s internal financial controls

over compliance with laws and regulations,
were not operating effectively which
could potentially result in Company’s non-
compliance with the applicable laws and
regulations. (Refer paragraphs 3(a) and 3(b)
of the main audit report)

b) The Company’s internal financial controls

over period end financial review process,
were not operating effectively which could
result in a potential adjustment to the
standalone financial statements, including
with regard to provisions, contingencies and
commitments. (Refer paragraph 3(a) of the
main audit report)

A ‘material weakness’ is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal
financial control over financial reporting,
such that there is a reasonable possibility
that a material misstatement of the
company's annual or interim financial
statements will not be prevented or
detected on a timely basis.

Qualified Opinion

10. In our opinion, the Company has, in all

material respects, maintained adequate
internal financial controls with reference
to financial statements as of March 31,
2022, based on the internal control over
financial reporting criteria established by
the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in
the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
issued by the ICAI and except for the effects
of the material weaknesses described in the
Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph above

©
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Place
Date

. We

on the achievement of the objectives of
the control criteria, the Company’s internal
financial controls with reference to financial
statements were operating effectively as of
March 31,2022.

have considered the material
weaknesses identified and reported above
in determining the nature, timing, and

: New Delhi
: June 13,2022

extent of audit tests applied in our audit
of the standalone financial statements of
the Company for the year ended March 31,
2022, and these material weaknesses have
affected our opinion on the standalone
financial statements of the Company for the
year ended on that date and we have issued
a qualified opinion on the standalone
financial statements. (Refer paragraph 3 of
the main audit report).

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP

Firm Registration Number: 012754N/N500016

Chartered Accountants

Baskar Pannerselvam

Partner

Membership Number : 213126
UDIN:22213126AKVTIB2099
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ANNEXURE B TO INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

Referred to in paragraph 12 of the Independent Auditors’ Report of even date to the
members of Indian Potash Limited on the standalone financial statements as of and
for the year ended March 31,2022

(A) The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative
details and situation, of property, plant and equipment.

(b) The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets.

(b) The property, plant and equipment are physically verified by the Management according
to a phased programme designed to cover all the items over a period of three years which,
in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its
assets. Pursuant to the programme, a portion of the property, plant and equipment has been
physically verified by the management during the year and no material discrepancies have
been noticed on such verification.

(c) The title deeds of all the immovable properties, as disclosed in note 2(a) on property, plant
and equipment to the standalone financial statements, are held in the name of the Company,
except for the following:

Description Gross Net carrying | Held in the | Whether | Period held Reason for not being
of property carrying amount name of | promoter, held in the name of the

value (Rs. In Lakhs) director or Company

(Rs.In their

Lakhs) relative or

employee
Industrial 88.98 47.64 Goldline | No Pursuant to  the
Factory Milkfood merger of Goldline
Building and Allied Milkfood and Allied
located at Industries Industries Limited (
Kundli, Limited including step-down
Sonipat subsidiary Sri Krishna
(Haryana) From Fertilizers  Limited)
Freehold 92.14 92.14  |Goldline |No September | with the Company,
Land of Milkfood 30,2020 till [ the title deeds of
1 Acre and Allied date. these immovable
located Industries properties are still
at Kundli, Limited held in the name of
Sonipat the erstwhile entities
(Haryana) and are yet to be
registered in the
name of the Company.

©
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IPL
Industrial 546.88 447.05 Sri No From As above
Factory Krishna September
Building Fertilizers 30, 2020 till
located at Limited date.

Muzzafar-
pur, Bihar

In respect of properties where the Company is the lessee, as disclosed in note 2(b) on right of use
assets to the standalone financial statements, all the agreements are duly executed in favour of the
lessee, except for the following:

Description Gross Net carrying | Held in the | Whether | Period held Reason for not being

of property [ carrying amount name of | promoter, held in the name of the
value (Rs. In Lakhs) director Company

(Rs.In or their

Lakhs) relative or

employee
Lease- 5,620.00 4.596.05 Members No From FY | The land was leased
hold land of 2011-12 till [to the Company by
measuring Motipur date. Bihar State Sugar
266 acres Sugar Corporation Limited
located in Factory (BSSCL) in 2011-12.
Motipur, / Bihar BSSCLs title to the
Bihar Sugar land was challenged
State Cor- by shareholders of
poration the sugar factory
Limited (erstwhile land

owners). The lease
agreement is yet to
be registered in the
name of the Company.

Lease- 1.83 1.72 Sri Krish- No From Pursuant to the
hold land na Fer- September | merger of Sri Krishna
located at tilizers 2020 till | Fertilizers Limited
Muzzafar- Limited date. with the Company,
pur, Bihar the lease agreements

are in the name of
the erstwhile entity
and are yet to be
executed in favour of
the Company.

(d) The Company has chosen cost model for its property, plant and equipment (including right of
use assets) and intangible assets. Consequently, the question of our commenting on whether the
revaluation is based on the valuation by a Registered Valuer, or specifying the amount of change, if
the change is 10% or more in the aggregate of the net carrying value of each class of property, plant
and equipment (including right of use assets) or intangible assets does not arise.

(e) Based on the information and explanations furnished to us, no proceedings have been initiated
on (or) are pending against the Company for holding benami property under the Prohibition of

(0
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Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) (formerly the Benami Transactions
(Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988)) and Rules made thereunder, and therefore the question of our
commenting on whether the Company has appropriately disclosed the details in its standalone
financial statements does not arise.

(@) The physical verification of inventory (including stocks with third parties) has been conducted
at reasonable intervals by the Management during the year and, in our opinion, the coverage and
procedure of such verification by Management is appropriate. In respect of inventory lying with
third parties, these have substantially been confirmed by them. The Management has involved
surveyors for carrying out physical verification of the bulk fertilisers stored in heaps as the survey
is technical in nature and we have carried out certain additional procedures in relation to the
physical verification of inventory. The discrepancies noticed on physical verification of inventory as
compared to book records were not 10% or more in aggregate for each class of inventory.

(b)  During the year, the Company has been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of Rs. 5
crores, in aggregate, from banks on the basis of security of current assets. The Company has filed
quarterly returns or statements with such banks, which are in agreement with the unaudited books
of account. Also refer Note 30(b) to the standalone financial statements.

(@) The Company has made investments in various mutual funds and five perpetual bonds, and
granted unsecured loans/advances in the nature of loans to one company and various other parties
(Staff loans). The aggregate amount during the year, and balance outstanding at the balance sheet
date with respect to such loans or advances and guarantees or security to subsidiaries,joint ventures
and associates and to parties other than subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates are as per the
table given below:

Particulars Loans Advances in nature of
(in Rs. Lakhs) loans
(in Rs. Lakhs)

Aggregate amount granted/ provided during the year
- Subsidiaries 13.45 -
- Others - 24.40

Balance outstanding as a balance sheet date in
respect of the above case
- Subsidiaries 13.45 -
- Others - 15.46

Also refer notes 4(a), 4(e), 4(f) and 26 to the standalone financial statements.

In respect of the aforesaid investments, loans/advances in the nature of loans, the terms and
conditions under which such loans/advances in the nature of loans were granted/investments are
made are not prejudicial to the Company’s interest.

In respect of the aforesaid loans/advances in the nature of loans, except for the loans granted to the
Company’s subsidiary amounting to Rs. 13.45 lakhs as at March 31,2022, the schedule of repayment
of principal and payment of interest has been stipulated, and the parties are repaying the principal
amounts, as stipulated, and are also regular in payment of interest as applicable. With respect to
the loans granted to the Company’s subsidiary, in the absence of stipulation of repayment terms, we
are unable to comment on the regularity of repayment of principal and payment of interest.

In respect of the aforesaid loans/advances in the nature of loans, there is no amount which is
overdue for more than ninety days.

There were no loans/advances in the nature of loans which fell due during the year and were
renewed/extended. Further, no fresh loans were granted to same parties to settle the existing
overdue loans/advances in the nature of loans.
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(f)

Following loans/advances in nature of loans were granted during the year, including to related
parties under Section 2(76), which are repayable on demand or where no schedule for repayment
of principal and payment of interest has been stipulated by the Company.

Al Parties
(in Rs. Lakhs)

Related Parties
(in Rs. Lakhs)

Promoters
(in Rs. Lakhs)

Particulars

Aggregate of loans/advances in nature of
loan
- Repayable on demand - - ,

- Agreement does not 13.45 - 13.45
specify any terms or period of repayment
Percentage of loans/advances in nature of 100% - 100%

loan to the total loans

Also refer note 4(e) and note 26 to the standalone financial statements.

iv.

Vi.

In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
complied with the provisions of Sections 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of the
loans and investments made by it. The Company has not provided any guarantees or security to the
parties covered under Sections 185 and 186.

In our opinion, the Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be
deposits within the meaning of Sections 73, 74,75 and 76 of the Act and the Rules framed there
under to the extent notified.

Pursuant to the rules made by the Central Government of India,the Company is required to maintain
cost records as specified under Section 148(1) of the Act in respect of its products. We have broadly
reviewed the same and are of the opinion that, prima facie, the prescribed accounts and records
have been made and maintained. We have not, however, made a detailed examination of the records
with a view to determine whether they are accurate or complete.

vii. (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company

examined by us,in our opinion,the Company is generally regular in depositing undisputed statutory
dues in respect of provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax and Goods and Services
tax, though there has been a slight delay in a few cases, and is regular in depositing undisputed
statutory dues, including sales tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax,
cess, as applicable, with the appropriate authorities. Also, refer note 13 to the standalone financial
statements regarding management's assessment on certain matters relating to provident fund.

(b)According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company
examined by us, there are no statutory dues of employees’ state insurance which have not been
deposited on account of any dispute. The particulars of other statutory dues referred to in sub-
clause (a) as at March 31, 2022 which have not been deposited on account of a dispute, are as
follows:

Name of the Nature of dues Amount Period to which Forum where the
statute (Rs. in lakhs) | the amount relates | dispute is pending
Customs Act, 1962 Customs Duty 3,689.89 2001-06 CESTAT, Bengaluru
Customs Act, 1962 Customs Duty 25.72 2006-09 Commissioners of
Customs
(Appeals) - Mumbai
Income Tax Act, 1961 Income Tax 76.66 2013-14 Income Tax
Appellate Tribunal,
Chennai
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Income Tax Act, 1961 Income Tax 174 2013-14 Commissioner of
Income Tax
(Appeals), Chennai
Income Tax Act, 1961 Income Tax 544.70 2017-18 Commissioner of
Income Tax
(Appeals), New Delhi
Central Excise Act, 1944 | Cenvat Credit 1.02 2008-09,2011- | Commissioner
12,2014-15 (Appeals), Meerut
Central Excise Act, 1944 | Cenvat Credit 2.26 2011-12 CESTAT, Allahabad
Central Excise Act,1944 | Excise Duty 1.99 2010-11, CESTAT, Allahabad
2012-13
Central Excise Act, 1944 | Excise Duty 8.13 2002-03 CESTAT, New Delhi
Central Excise Act, 1944 Excise Duty 15.06 2010-11, Commissioner
2013-14 (Appeals), Allahabad
Central Excise Act, 1944 | Excise Duty 1.94 2017-18 Superintendent,
Central Excise,
Gorakhpur
The Finance Act, 1994 Service Tax 1.81 2009 Commissioner
(Appeals),Allahabad
Uttar Pradesh Trade Tax | Trade Tax 0.40 2013-14 Additional Commis-
Act, 1948 (Entry Tax) sioner
(Appeals), Gorakhpur
Uttar Pradesh Trade Tax | Trade Tax 7.50 2008-09 Additional
Act, 1948 (Entry Tax) Commissioner
(Appeals), Meerut
Uttar Pradesh Trade Tax | Trade Tax 31.22 2005-06 Deputy
Act, 1948 (Entry Tax) Commissioner,
Commercial Tax,
Muzaffarnagar
Uttar Pradesh Trade Tax | Trade Tax 14.22 1993-94,2001- | Trade Tax Tribunal,
Act, 1948 (Entry Tax) 02,2005-06, Meerut
2006-07
Kerala Value Added Tax | Value Added Tax 6,596.76 2005-06,2006- | Honourable
Act, 2003 07,2007-08, Supreme Court of
2008-09,2009- | India
10 and 2011-12
Maharashtra Value Value Added Tax 19.40 2011-12 Deputy Commis-
Added Tax Act, 2002 sioner of Sales Tax,
Mumbai
Maharashtra Value Value Added Tax 1.44 2013-14 Joint Commissioner
Added Tax Act, 2002 of Sales Tax,
Mumbai
Orissa Value Added Tax | Value Added Tax 9.19 2013-14,2015- |Honourable High
Act, 2004 16,2016-17 Court of Orissa
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IPL
Tripura Value Added Tax | Value Added Tax 16.28 2015-16,2016- | Assistant
Act, 2004 17,2017-18 Commissioner of
Sales Tax, Tripura
Uttar Pradesh Value Value Added Tax 106.55 2010-11 Additional Commis-
Added Tax, 2008 sioner (Appeals),
Uttar Pradesh
Central Sales Tax Act, Central Sales Tax 1.58 2008-09 Hon'ble Member,
1956 Comm. Tax Tribunal,
Bench-I1l, Meerut
Uttar Pradesh Trade Tax | Trade Tax 1.05 2008-09 Hon'ble Member,
Act, 1948 (Entry Tax) Comm. Tax Tribunal,
Bench-Il, Meerut
The Finance Tax Act, Service Tax 44574 2015-2018 Honourable
1994 Supreme Court of
India
Central Goods and Goods and 11,300.00 2017-2019 Joint Commissioner
Services Tax Act, 2017 Services Tax of CGST (Appeals),
(GST) Ahmedabad.
Central Goods and Goods and 3,065.24 2018-2021 Honourable High
Services Tax Act, 2017 Services Tax Court of Karnataka
(GST)
The Employees’ Provident Fund 19.16 1991 Honourable High
Provident Fund and Court of Allahabad
Miscellaneous
Provisions Act, 1952

viii. Accordingto the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company examined
by us, there are no transactions in the books of account that has been surrendered or disclosed as
income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961, that has not been
recorded in the books of account.

(@) According to the records of the Company examined by us and the information and explanation

(b)

given to us, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in
the payment of interest to any lender during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our audit
procedures, we report that the Company has not been declared Wilful Defaulter by any bank
or financial institution or government or any government authority.

In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the term loans
have been applied for the purposes for which they were obtained. Also refer Note 9(a)(i) to the
standalone financial statements.

According to the information and explanations given to us,and the procedures performed by
us,and on an overall examination of the standalone financial statements of the Company, we
report that no funds raised on short-term basis have been used for long-term purposes by the
Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination
of the standalone financial statements of the Company, we report that the Company has not
taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its
subsidiary or associate company.
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x

Xii.

Xiii.

Xiv.

XV.

XVi.

(f) According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures performed by us,we
report that the Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held
in its subsidiary or associate company.

(@) The Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments) during the year. Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(x)(a) of
the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully
or partially or optionally convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly, the reporting
under clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(@) During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out
in accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the
information and explanations given to us, except for the matter referred to in Note 25(e) to
the standalone financial statements and paragraph 3(a) of the Basis for Qualified Opinion
paragraph in main report regarding the ongoing investigation initiated by CBI on which we are
unable to comment pending outcome of the investigation, we have neither come across any
instance of material fraud by the Company or on the Company, noticed or reported during the
year, nor have we been informed of any such case by the Management.

(b) During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out
in accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the
information and explanations given to us, a report under Section 143(12) of the Act, in Form
ADT-4, as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 was not
required to be filed with the Central Government. Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(xi)
(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(c) During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out
in accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the
information and explanations given to us, and as represented to us by the Management, no
whistle-blower complaints have been received during the year by the Company. Accordingly,
the reporting under clause 3(xi)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

As the Company is not a Nidhi Company and the Nidhi Rules, 2014 are not applicable to it, the
reporting under clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

Refer note 25(f) to the standalone financial statements and paragraph 3(b) of the Basis for Qualified
Opinion paragraph in the main report regarding the composition of Audit Committee and post-facto
approval by the Audit Committee in connection with related party transactions instead of prior
approval as required under Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013. Except for these matters, the
Company has entered into transactions with related parties in compliance with the provisions of
Sections 177 and 188 of the Act. The details of such related party transactions have been disclosed
in the standalone financial statements as required under Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 24,
“Related Party Disclosures” specified under Section 133 of the Act.

(@) Inour opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us,the Company has

an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its business.

(b) The reports of the Internal Auditor for the period under audit have been considered by us.

The Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected
with him. Accordingly, the reporting on compliance with the provisions of Section 192 of the Act
under clause 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(@) The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934. Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(xvi)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.
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XVii.

XViii.

XiX.

XX.

The Company has not conducted non-banking financial or housing finance activities during
the year. Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(xvi)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by
the Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(xvi)(c) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

Based on the information and explanations provided by the Management of the Company, the
Group does not have any CICs, which are part of the Group. We have not, however, separately
evaluated whether the information provided by the Management is accurate and complete.
Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(xvi)(d) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(d)

The Company has not incurred any cash losses in the financial year or in the immediately preceding
financial year.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and accordingly the
reporting under clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios
(also refer note 30(n) to the standalone financial statements), ageing and expected dates of
realisation of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying
the financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and Management plans and
based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our
attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the
auditors’ report that the Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of
standalone balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the standalone
balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the
Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the auditors’
report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a
period of one year from the standalone balance sheet date will get discharged by the Company as
and when they fall due.

(@)The Company has transferred the amount of Corporate Social Responsibility remaining unspent
under sub-section (5) of Section 135 of the Act in respect of “other than ongoing projects”to a Fund
specified in Schedule VII to the Act within a period of six months of the expiry of the financial year
in compliance with second proviso to sub-section (5) of Section 135 of the Act. Details are as given
below:

Financial | Amount to be Amount Amount trans- Amount trans- Amount not
year spent in remaining ferred to Fund ferred to Fund transferred to
accordance | unspent as at | under Schedule VI, | under Schedule Fund under
with section | theyear-end | within 6 months | VI, after 6 months | Schedule VII,
135(5) to be trans- | from end of finan- from end of till the date of
(in Rs. Lakhs) ferred to fund cial year (or till financial year (till | audit report
) under Sched- | the date of audit | the date of audit | (in Rs. Lakhs)
ule VI report, if that is report)
(in Rs. Lakhs) earlier) (in Rs. Lakhs)
(in Rs. Lakhs)
2021-22 1,270.07 87.14 - - 87.14
2020-21 1,039.66 798.09 800.00 - -

Also refer note 20(b) to the standalone financial statements.
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(b) The Company has transferred the amount of Corporate Social Responsibility remaining unspent
under sub-section (5) of Section 135 of the Act pursuant to ongoing projects to a special account
in compliance with the provision of sub-section (6) of Section 135 of the Act. Details are as given

below:
Financial | Amount to Amount Amount trans- Amount trans- Amount not
year be spent in remaining ferred to Special ferred to Special | transferred to
accordance | unspentas at | Bank Account u/s Bank Account Special Bank
with section | the year-end | 135(6), within 30 | u/s 135(6), after Account u/s
135(5) to be trans- days from end of a period of 30 135(6), till the
ferred special | financial year (or | days fromendof | date of audit
. account u/s till the date of financial year (till report
(in Rs. Lakhs) .
135(6) audit report, if that | the date of audit | (jn Rs. Lakhs)
(in Rs. Lakhs) is earlier) report)
(in Rs. Lakhs) (in Rs. Lakhs)
2021-22 1,270.07 504.96* 504.96* - -

*Excludes Rs. 150 lakhs which has been contributed to an implementing agency,who has confirmed that
amount is earmarked separately for ongoing projects.

Also refer note 20(b) to the standalone financial statements.

xxi. The reporting under clause 3(xxi) of the Order is not applicable in respect of audit of the standalone
financial statements. Accordingly, no comment in respect of the said clause has been included in

this report.
Place : New Delhi
Date : 13June 2022

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration Number: 012754N/N500016
Chartered Accountants

Baskar Pannerselvam

Partner

Membership Number : 213126
UDIN :22213126AKVTIB2099
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Standalone balance sheet as at 31 March 2022
All amounts in Indian Rupees lakhs, unless otherwise stated

Particulars Note As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 2(a) 88,094.28 87,181.01
Right-of-use assets 2(b) 10,520.41 9,022.74
Capital work-in-progress 2(a) 15,730.44 9,289.55
Intangible assets 3 112.97 131.61
Financial assets
i. Investments 4(a)(i) 1,24,618.67 1,33,635.01
ii. Loans 4(e) 2,497.99 2,498.22
iii. Other financial assets 4(f) 247.83 198.56
Deferred tax assets (net) 5 14,866.57 12,307.47
Other non-current assets 6 18.10 1,010.24
Total non-current assets 2,56,707.26 2,55,274.41
Current assets
Inventories 7 6,06,700.59 2,63,209.77
Financial assets
i. Investments 4(a)(ii) 3,17/476.06 -
ii. Trade receivables 4(b) 1,90,020.33 3,06,663.98
iii. Cash and cash equivalents 4(c) 4,92,720.73 1,15,624.84
iv. Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 4(d) 18,295.43 6,866.11
v. Loans 4(e) 0.35 0.72
vi. Other financial assets 4(f) 5,781.36 4.801.09
Other current assets 6 88,174.22 42,210.98
Total current assets 17,19,169.07 7,39,377.49
Total assets 19,75,876.33 9,94,651.90
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital 8(a) 2,859.72 2,859.72
Other equity
Reserves and surplus 8(b) 4.57906.47 3,97426.51
Other reserves 8(c) 5,995.24 6,576.14
Total equity 4,66,761.43 4,06,862.37
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
i. Borrowings 9(a)(i) 4,784.26 6,910.60
ii. Lease liabilities 2(b) 1,884.21 364.05
iii. Other financial liabilities 9(c) 4911.29 4.815.40
Total non-current liabilities 11,579.76 12,090.05
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
i. Borrowings 9(a)(ii) 5,49,664.38 2,70,771.67
ii. Lease liabilities 2(b) 629.47 488.99
iii. Trade payables 9(b)
(a) total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises 0.64 -
(b) total outstanding dues other than micro and small enterprises 8,62,488.11 2,42,002.11
iv. Other financial liabilities 9(c) 44,207.59 23,775.24
Contract liabilities 9(d) 17,516.22 18,741.82
Provisions 10 7,293.78 7,293.78
Employee benefits obligations 11 518.57 905.74
Current tax liabilities (net) 12 14,546.27 9,475.22
Other current liabilities 13 670.11 2,24491
Total current liabilities 14,97,535.14 5,75,699.48
Total liabilities 15,09,114.90 5,87,789.53
Total equity and liabilities 19,75,876.33 9,94,651.90
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. This is the standalone balance sheet referred to in our report of even date.

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Firm Registration Number: 012754N/N500016 chndeep Kumar Nayak PS.Gahlaut
Chartered Accountants DIN: 02140600 Managing Director
. DIN: 00049401

Baskar Pannerselvam U.'S.Awasthl ;
Partner Director Bl}dhltf Bhargava
Membership No.: 213126 DIN: 00026019 irector

embersiip o ) Girish Kumar DIN: 00247515
Place New Dethi Company Secretary R. Srinivasan
Date - 13 June 2022 Place: New Delhi Chief Financial Officer

A4 Date : 13 June 2022
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Standalone statement of profit and loss for the year ended 31 March 2022
All amounts in Indian Rupees lakhs, unless otherwise stated

Particulars Note Year ended Year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Income
Revenue from operations 14 18,50,353.31 16,30,387.72
Other income 15 21,194.79 2772171
Total income 18,71,548.10 16,58,109.43
Expenses
Cost of materials consumed 16 1,17,218.42 1,55,962.30
Purchases of stock-in-trade 17,86,463.07 11,71,061.94
Changes in inventories of work-in-progress, stock-in-trade and finished goods 17 (3,41,847.66) (6,743.28)
Employee benefit expense 18 9,746.48 9,056.96
Depreciation and amortisation expense 19 4,638.80 5,115.99
Other expenses 20 2,01,328.73 2,32,548.34
Finance costs 21 11,814.94 15,112.62
Total expenses 17,89,362.78 15,82,114.87
Profit before tax 82,185.32 75,994.56
Income tax expense 22
Current tax 23,055.00 19,291.51
Deferred tax (2,375.81) (304.16)
Total tax expense 20,679.19 18,987.35
Profit for the year 61,506.13 57,007.21
Other comprehensive income
Items that may be reclassified to profit or loss :
Debt instruments through other comprehensive income 8(c) (313.27) 533.53
Income tax relating to items that may be reclassified to profit or loss 111.45 (54.99)
(201.82) (478.54)
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss:
Gain/ losses on equity instruments at fair value through 8(c) (490.53) 16.09
other comprehensive income(FVOCI)
Remeasurements of post-employment benefit obligations 11 157.32 63.68
Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 71.85 (25.49)
(261.36) 54.28
Total other comprehensive income / (loss) (463.18) 532.82
Total comprehensive income for the year 61,042.95 57,540.03
Earnings per equity share 23
Basic (in Rs.) 215.08 199.35
Diluted (in Rs.) 215.08 199.35
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. This is the standalone statement of profit and loss referred to in our
report of even date.

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Firm Registration Number: 012754N/N500016

Chartered Accountants Sundeep Kumar Nayak P.S.Gahlaut
Chairman Managing Director
DIN: 02140600 DIN: 00049401

Baskar Pannerselvam

Partner . i

. U.S.Awasth Sudhir Bhargava

Membership No.: 213126 Direcgars ' Director

DIN: 00026019 DIN: 00247515
R. Srinivasan

Girish Kumar

Place : New Delhi Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer

Date : 13 June 2022

Place : New Delhi
Date :13 June 2022
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Standalone statement of changes in equity for the year ended 31 March 2022
All amounts in Indian Rupees lakhs, unless otherwise stated

a. Equity share capital
Particulars Note
Balance as at 1 April 2020 2,859.72
Changes in equity share capital during 2020-21 8(a) -
Balance as at 31 March 2021 2,859.72
Changes in equity share capital during 2021-22 8(a) -
Balance as at 31 March 2022 2,859.72
b. Other equity
Other Equity
Other Comprehensive Total equity
Reselgies & ENEAES Income (OCI) attributable
) Capital | General | Retained | Molasses Debt Equity to equity
Particulars reserve | reserve earnings | Storage [ instrument | instrument | holders of
Facility | through through | the Com-
Reserve | other com- | other com- pany
Fund prehensive | prehensive
income income
Opening balance as at 1 April 2020 7,523.74| 41,557.02 2,91,908.22 127.54 5,160.18 900.85 3,47,177.55
Profit for the year 57,007.21 B B 57007.21
Other comprehensive income (net of tax) 1771 478.54 36.57 532.82
Total comprehensive income for the year 57,024.92 478.54 36.57 57,540.03
Transfer to Molasses Storage Facility (15.76) 15.76
Reserve Fund (Refer Note 8(b))
Transactions with owners in their capacity
as owners:
Final dividend . - (714.93) . . (714.93)
Closing balance as at 31 March 2021 7,523.74 41,557.02 3,48,202.45 143.30 5,638.72 93742 4,04,002.65
Opening balance as at 1 April 2021 7523.74 41,557.02 3,48,202.45 143.30 5,638.72 93742 4,04,002.65
Profit for the year - - 61,506.13 - - - 61,506.13
Other comprehensive income (net of tax) 11772 (201.82) (379.08) (463.18)
Total comprehensive income for the year 61,623.85 (201.82) (379.08) 61,042.95
Transfer to Molasses Storage Facility (16.34) 16.34 -
Reserve Fund (Refer Note 8(b))
Transactions with owners in their capacity
as owners:
Final dividend . . (1,143.89) . . : (1,143.89)
Closing balance as at 31 March 2022 7,523.74 41,557.02 4,08,666.07 159.64 5,436.90 558.34 4,63,901.71

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. This is the standalone statement of changes in equity referred to in our report of even

date.

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration Number: 012754N/N500016

Chartered Accountants

Baskar Pannerselvam
Partner
Membership No.: 213126

: New Delhi
: 13 June 2022

Place
Date

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Sundeep Kumar Nayak

Chairman
DIN: 02140600

U.S.Awasthi
Director
DIN: 00026019

Girish Kumar

Company Secretary

Place : New Delhi
Date

:13 June 2022

P.S.Gahlaut
Managing Director
DIN: 00049401
Sudhir Bhargava
Director

DIN: 00247515

R. Srinivasan
Chief Financial Officer
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Standalone statement of cash flows for the year ended 31 March 2022
All amounts in Indian Rupees lakhs, unless otherwise stated

Particulars

Year ended
31 March 2022

Year ended
31 March 2021

Cash flow from operating activities

Profit before tax
Adjustments for
Depreciation and amortisation expense
Finance costs
Unrealised difference on translation of assets and liabilities
Provision for doubtful trade and other receivables, loans and advances
Dividend from associate company
Interest Income on financial assets
Provision for GST receivable
Provision / liabilities no longer required, written back
Net fair value gains on financial assets measured at fair value
through profit or loss
Profit on sale of investment, net
Profit on sale of PPE, net

Change in operating assets and liabilities
Decrease in trade receivables

Decrease in loans

Decrease in other financial assets

Increase in other current assets

Increase in inventories

Increase / (decrease) in trade payables

Increase in other financial liabilities

Increase / (decrease) in contract liabilities and other current liabilities
Decrease in employee benefit obligations

Cash generated from/ (used in) operations
Less: Income taxes paid

Net cash inflow/ (outflow) from operating activities

Cash flow from investing activities:
Payments for property, plant and equipment, intangible assets and

capital work in progress

Sale proceeds of property, plant and equipment
Purchase of non current investments

Proceeds from sale of current investments
Purchase of current investments

Bank deposits made (net)

Dividend received from associate company
Interest received on financial assets

Loans to wholly owned subsidiary

Net cash (used in)/ from investing activities

82,185.32 75,994.56
4638.80 5,115.99
11,814.94 15,112.62
(221.71) (562.22)
(4,482.97) (4,287.75)
(4,658.20) (2,388.79)
(7,561.06) (4,925.83)
15,000.00 15,000.00

- (4,847.42)

(186.68) -
(5,978.73) (2,758.96)
(220.61) (30.99)
90,329.10 91,421.21
1,20,707.66 2,37,541.54
0.37 1.13

45278 137.48
(60,963.24) (572.28)
(3,43,490.82) (5,827.16)
6,22,064.34 (97,913.06)
11,926.59 275.90
(2,800.40) 8,134.79
(229.85) (179.87)
4,37,996.53 2,33,019.68
(18,055.80) (19,226.06)
4,19,940.73 2,13,793.62
(9,197.00) (11,592.70)
229.06 33.46
(29,676.84) (20,623.89)
28,89,547.48 13,60,451.06
(31,62,968.75) (13,57,692.10)
(11,409.71) (4,989.72)
4658.20 2,388.79
5,773.81 4,748.41
(13.46) (15.51)
(3,13,057.21) (27,292.20)
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INDIAN POTASH LIMITED

Standalone statement of cash flows for the year ended 31 March 2022

All amounts in Indian Rupees lakhs, unless otherwise stated

Particulars

Cash flow from financing activities
Proceeds from long term borrowings

Repayment of long term borrowings

(Repayment) of / Proceeds from short term borrowings and
cane bills payable to banks

Principal portion of lease payments

Dividend on shares

Finance costs paid

Net cash (used in)/ from financing activities

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

"Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the

financial year"

Effects of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

Non-cash financing and investing activities
Acquisition of right-of-use assets (refer note 2b)
Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents as per statement of cash flows:

Cash and cash equivalents (refer note 4c)
Balances as per statement of cash flows

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
- 8,505.35
(11,344.75) (19,500.00)
2,94,718.32 (96,543.26)
(615.33) (573.11)
(1,124.28) (704.67)
(11,490.60) (16,295.33)
2,70,143.36 (1,25,111.02)
3,77,026.88 61,390.40
1,15,624.84 54,234.44
69.01 -
492,720.73 1,15,624.84
2,275.93 -
As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
492,720.73 1,15,624.84
492,720.73 1,15,624.84

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. This is the standalone statement of cash flows referred to in our

report of even date.

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration Number: 012754N/N500016
Chartered Accountants
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Partner
Membership No.: 213126

: New Delhi
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Director
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Notes to the standalone financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2022

1. Overview and significant accounting policies
1.1. Company overview

Indian Potash Limited ( IPL) ('the Company’) is a leading importer involved in distribution of Muriate
of Potash, Di-Ammonium Phosphate, Sulphate of Potash, Urea, Rock Phosphate, Gypsum etc. across the
country including certain in-accessible areas, duly serviced by Regional offices operating in almost all
State Capitals.

The Company is involved in the business of manufacturing of Cattle feed products,Milk and milk products,
Sulphitation and refined Sugar and trading of Gold and other precious metals.

The Company is a public limited company incorporated and domiciled in India and has its registered
office in Chennai, Tamilnadu, India.

1.2. Basis of preparation of standalone financial statements

Compliance with Ind AS

These financial statements are prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) under
the historical cost convention on the accrual basis except for certain financial instruments which are
measured at fair values, at the end of each reporting period as explained in the accounting policies
below, and have complied in all material respects with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the
Act)) (to the extent notified). The Ind AS are prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with Rule 3
of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and relevant amendment rules issued
thereafter.

Historical cost convention

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods and
services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price
is directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value
of an asset or a liability, the Company takes into account the characteristics of the asset or liability if
market participants would take those characteristics into account when pricing the asset or liability
at the measurement date. Fair value for measurement and /or disclosure purposes in these financial
statements is determined on such a basis, except for leasing transactions that are within the scope of
Ind AS 116, and measurements that have some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as
net realisable value in Ind AS 2 or value in use in Ind AS 36.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2
or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and the
significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

e level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that
the entity can access at the measurement date;

e level 2 inputs are inputs , other than quoted prices included within Level 1 ,that are observable for
the asset or liability, either directly (i.e.as prices ) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices );

e Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

(79
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Notes to the standalone financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2022

Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where a newly-issued accounting standard
is initially adopted or a revision to an existing accounting standard requires a change in the accounting
policy hitherto in use.

New and amended standards adopted by the Company

The Company has applied following amendments for the first time in their annual reporting period
commencing April 01,2021.

(@) Extension of COVID-19 related concessions — amendments to Ind AS 116

(b) Interest Rate Benchmark Reform - amendments to Ind AS 109, Finanancial Instruments, Ind As 107,
Finanancial Instruments : Disclosures, Ind AS 104, Insurance contracts Ind As 116, leases.

The amendments listed above did not have any impact on the amounts recognized in prior periods and
are not expected to significantly affect the current or future periods.

New amendments issued but not effective

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has vide notification dated 23 March 2022 notified Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2022 which amends certain accounting standards, and are
effective 1 April 2022. These amendments are not expected to have a material impact on the Company
in the current or future reporting periods and on foreseeable future transactions.

Reclassifications consequent to amendments to Schedule Il

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs amended the Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013 on 24 March
2021 to increase the transparency and provide additional disclosures to users of financial statements.
These amendments are effective from 1 April 2021.

Consequent to above, the Company has changed the classification/presentation of current maturities
of long-term borrowings. The current maturities of long-term borrowings (including interest accrued)
has now been included in the “Current borrowings” line item. Previously, current maturities of long-term
borrowings and interest accrued were included in ‘other financial liabilities’ line item.

The Company has reclassified comparative amounts to conform with current year presentation as per
the requirements of Ind AS 1. The impact of such classifications (in Rs. Lakhs) is summarised below:

Balance Sheet (extract) 31 March 2021 Increase / (Decrease) 31 March 2021
(as previously reported) (restated)
Other financial 35,444.07 (11,668.83) 23,775.24
liabilities (current)
Current borrowings 2,59,102.78 11,668.83 2,70,771.61

1.3. Use of estimates and judgements

In preparing these financial statements, Management has made judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities,income
and expenses. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

1.3.1. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an on-going basis.Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised prospectively.

30
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Notes to the standalone financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2022

1.3.2. Judgements are made in applying accounting policies that have the most significant effects on
the amounts recognised in the financial statements.

a.  NRV-Expenses related to purchases like freight subsidy is adjusted for calculating the NRV

b. Tax provision management uses its judgement on the probability of the outcome of the case and
accordingly provision is created.

1.3.3. Assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have a significant risk of resulting in a material
adjustment are reviewed on an on-going basis.

The areas involving critical esti